Detection and Classification of Cataract

using Fuzzy Inference System

A project report submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements

for the degree of Master of Philosophy in Computer Science

By

KALYANI SAMBHOO

PRN QR2003619

Nowrosjee Wadia College, Pune - 1

Guide

Dr SANJAY KADAM

Yashwantrao Chavan Maharashtra Open University, Nashik 422 222

Year 2007 - 09

CERTIFICATE

This is to certify that the undersigned have assessed and evaluated the Research Project Detection and Classification of Cataract using Fuzzy Inference System submitted by KALYANI SAMBHOO. The project report has been (accepted / rejected) for the partial fulfillment of the degree of Master of Philosophy in (Computer Science).

Internal Examiner	External Examiner
Signature	Signature
Name	Name
Date	Date

DECLARATION

I hereby declare that this Project Report titled **Detection and Classification** of **Cataract using Fuzzy Inference System** submitted by me is based on actual work carried out by me under the guidance and supervision of **Dr Sanjay Kadam**. Any reference to work done by any other person or institution or any material obtained from other sources have been duly cited and referenced. It is further to state that this work is not submitted anywhere else for any examination.

Nowrosjee Wadia College,

Signature of the Research student

Pune

Mrs. Kalyani Sambhoo (Salla)

Date

PRN – QR2003619

DECLARATION

I hereby declare that this Project Report titled **Detection and Classification** of **Cataract using Fuzzy Inference System** submitted by me is based on actual work carried out by me under the guidance and supervision of Dr. Sanjay Kadam. Any reference to work done by any other person or institution or any material obtained from other sources have been duly cited and referenced. It is further to state that this work is not submitted anywhere else for any examination.

Nowrosjee Wadia College,

Signature of the student

Pune

Mrs. Kalyani Sambhoo (Salla)

PRN - QR2003619

CERTIFICATE FROM THE GUIDE

This is to certify that Mrs .KALYANI SAMBHOO has completed the Research Project Detection and Classification of cataract using Fuzzy Inference System under my guidance and supervision, and submitted the project report as laid down by Yashwantrao Chavan Maharashtra Open University, Nashik. The material that has been obtained from other sources is duly acknowledged in the dissertation. It is further certified that the work or its part has not been submitted to any other University for examination under my supervision. I consider this work worthy for the award of the degree of Master of Philosophy in Computer Science.

Nowrosjee Wadia College, Pune

Signature of Guide

Name

Date

Acknowledgements

I sincerely thank my Guide **Dr. Sanjay Kadam** for providing valuable suggestions and giving his precious time from his busy schedule to help me understand higher end concepts.

My special thanks to Dr S.C Shirwaikar, MPhil Course Co-ordinator and Head, Department of Computer Sc, Nowrosjee Wadia College for her moral support and her willingness to help in solving any kind of problem throughout my research work.

I sincerely thank the teaching staff of MPhil course Dr Ashok Deshpande, Dr Mohan Kale, Dr Pravin Bhadane, Dr Sundar Rajan and Dr Parvati Rajan for the deep insight given by them through the various courses they taught and introducing me to the world of Research.

I am extremely thankful to Dr. Seema Jagdale (MD Opthalmology) for allowing me to carry out observation and data recording in the OPD of H.V Desai Hospital, Pune and Dr. Madhuri Rokade (MD Opthalmology) for providing me with the necessary study material and even her personal copy of books related to clinical Opthalmology.

I am also thankful to Prof S.S Deshmukh, Vice Principal and Head, Department of computer Science, Modern College for his motivations and well-wishes.

I am grateful to my friends and colleagues with whom I had both academic and non-academic interactions.

And finally, I am extremely thankful to my family and especially my little children Riddhi and Sarthak for their patience and understanding when I was not able to give them attention during the span of my Research work.

6

Table of contents

No

Chaj	p No Title	Page
1 Int	troduction	1
1.1	Overview	1
1.2	Aims of this Research Work	3
1.3	Problem statement	4
1.4	Organization of the thesis	4
2 Ba	ckground Theory and Literature Survey	6
2.1	Cataract Background	6
	2.1.1 Types of Cataract	7
	2.1.2 Manual Cataract detection system	10
	2.1.3 Manual Cataract classification system	10
	2.1.4 Manual Cataract grading system	10
2.2	Literature Survey	12
	2.2.1 Approach based on support vector machines	12
	2.2.1 Approach based on Fuzzy Logic	12
2.3	An Introduction to Fuzzy Logic	13
	2.3.1 Logical operations	16
	2.3.2 If – Then rules	18
	2.3.3 Implication	20
	2.3.4 Aggregation	20
	2.3.5 Defuzzification	21
2.4	Fuzzy Inference System	22
2.5	Summary	23
3 Re	esearch Design	24
3.1	1 Image Cropping	24

3.2 Image Enhancement	
3.3 Extract Data of Interest	
3.4 Fuzzy Inference System approach	
3.4.1 Membership Function	
3.4.2 Membership Function for Cataract De	tection35
and classification	
3.4.3 Membership Function for Grading of G	Cortical36
Cataract	
3.4.4 Fuzzy Logic operators	
3.4.5 If – Then Rules	
3.4.6 Rule formulation for Cataract Detecti	on37
3.4.7 Rule formulation for Cataract Classif	ication38
3.4.8 Rule formulation for Grading of Cort	tical Cataract41
3.4.9 Aggregation and Deffuzification	43
3.5 Summary	44

4	Data Generation45	
	4.1 Data Collection Method45	
	4.1.1 Data Analysis46	
	4.1.2 Selection of subjects46	
	4.2 Data Pre-processing46	
	4.3 Summary47	

5 Results and conclusion 48
5.1 Performance of Cataract Detection Algorithm48
5.2 Performance of Cataract Detection using Fuzzy49
Inference System
5.3 Performance of grading of Cortical Cataract

5.4 Testing Accuracy of Basic Algorithm	50
5.5 Testing Accuracy of Fuzzy Inference System	50
5.6 Conclusions	53
5.6.1 Aims and Motivation	53
5.6.2 Research Review	54
5.6.3 Contributions of the Research work	55
5.6.4 Comparison with related work	55
5.6.5 Future work	56

Appendix A - Screen shots	59
Appendix B - Platform Used	73
Appendix C – Photo Gallery	74
Bibliography	76

List of Figures

Figure No	Illustration Page No.	0
2.1	Image of an eye with cataract6	
2.2	Two types of senile cataract8	
2.3	LOCS-III standards11	
2.4	Generalized Fuzzy systems16	
2.5	A plot of membership function19	
3.1	Original image of a subject with cataract24	
3.2	Image after cropping25	
3.3	Retro-illumination image of nuclear cataract25	
3.4	Cropped and enhanced retro-illumination image26	
3.5	Preprocessing and feature extraction27	
3.6	Fuzzy Inference System29	
3.7	Core, Support and boundaries of a fuzzy set31	
3.8	Triangular and Trapezoidal MF32	
3.9	Gaussian and Bell MF33	
3.10	Sigmoidal MF33	
3.11	Polynomial MF34	
3.12	Trapezoidal MF34	
3.13	Cropped image of cataract eye	
3.14	Classification of cataract region	
3.15	MF formulation for XData40	
3.16	Cropped retro-illumination images of Cortical42	
	cataract	
3.17	Slit – lamp image of Nuclear cataract and its43	
	retro-illumination image	
3.18	Slit – lamp image of Cortical cataract43	

3.19	Centroid Defuzzification method44
5.1	A bar plot of RGB values52
5.2	A surface plot of RGB values53
5.3	Image of normal PET scan57
5.4	Image of PET scan with lymp nodes57

List of Tables

Table No	Illustration	Page No
2.1	AND operation	17
2.2	OR operation	17
2.3	NOT operation	17
2.4	AND operation(min)	18
2.5	OR operation(max)	18
2.6	NOT operation	18
4.1	Schedule for data collection	45

List of Abbreviations

FIS	Fuzzy Inference System
RGB	Red Green Blue
Eg	For example (exempli gratia)
i.e	That is / to say (id est)
p, pp	Page(s)
mf	Membership Function
dat	Data
LOCS	Lens opacity classification system
etc.	And so forth
fig	figure
GUI	Graphical user interface

CHAPTER 1

INTRODUCTION

1.1 Overview

A cataract is a clouding that develops in the crystalline lens of the eye or in its envelope, varying in degree from slight to complete opacity and obstructs the passage of light. The lens of the eye consists of water and protein which allows light to pass through it and is incident on the retina¹. With age, some of the protein in the eye begins to clump together, preventing light from reaching the retina and thus blurring the vision². Cataract is considered as a condition and not a disease³.

The white portion of the eye is called sclera, the center-most portion is the pupil and the portion between the pupil and the sclera is called the iris. A lens is located in front of the pupil. A cataract can cover the eye lens partially or completely¹. It can be stationary, meaning its growth is in one place and slow or stopped, or it can be progressive and grow rapidly. Age-related cataract is the most common form of cataract. Age-related cataracts are morphologically classified into nuclear, cortical, and sub-capsular.

A thorough eye examination through a Slit lamp by an ophthalmologist detects the presence and the extent of a cataract². If the lens of the eye appears to be cloudy the cataract is detected .

¹ Available fromhttp://12.31.13.13/HealthTopics/senior/Oct03ssMain.htm

² Available from: <u>http://www.cataract.com</u>

³ Available from: http://shroffeye.org

Cataract is classified based on location of the opaqueness on the lens. If the opaque is at the center of the lens the type of cataract is 'nuclear', if the opaqueness is at the periphery of the lens the type of cataract is 'cortical'. The cataract is graded by comparing the picture observed during Slit-lamp bio-microscopy with a set of standard photographs which is termed as clinical grading. The clinical grading systems are subjective and thus, they are vulnerable to inconsistencies over time and in different observers.

In the last decade, many techniques have been developed for disease detection and classification of bio-medical images. The techniques such as Hidden Markov Models and Neural Networks were used for classification. But the major problem faced by such systems is the presence of noise in an image. Sometimes the quality of an image is poor which could mislead the prediction of a disease or condition. The methods and instruments used for capturing an image also affects the accuracy of detection. As mentioned earlier the current methods used for cataract detection are subjective. So there was a need of automated system for cataract detection and classification which will minimize human intervention by employing some empirical knowledge and provide good accuracy.

In this dissertation, an effort has been made to automate the cataract detection, classification and grading method. Algorithms have been developed which detect the presence of cataract. Currently, the detector enhances the image quality, and works on cropped images which depict only the region of interest i.e. the pupil in an eye image using MATLAB functions and then computes the pixel colour which are crisp (non-fuzzy) numbers limited within a specific range are sent as input to a Fuzzy Inference System. Rules are designed which execute using fuzzy reasoning of membership functions. The input to an if-then rule is the current value for the input variable and the output is an entire fuzzy set . This fuzzy set is later defuzzified to obtain a crisp result assigning one value to the output which is a crisp result i.e. non-cataract or cataract and is further classified into its types. With little modification, proposed model can be used as a tool for semi-automated cataract detection and classification.

1.2 Aims of this Research work

The aim of this research work was to remove subjectivity and in-consistencies over time and in different observers and remove the need of an expert for detection procedure thus freeing him to do other important tasks like Cataract surgery.

In order to achieve this, the following objectives were considered in this dissertation:

- 1) To pre-process cataract eye image and eliminate complex background and extract only the pupil region from normal eye image and lens region from retro-illumination images.
- 2) To extract features like the colour of the pixels and pixel co-ordinates in the region of interest.
- 3) Use fuzzy inference system to fuzzify the input variables, and evaluate rules using Fuzzy reasoning. There are five parts for the fuzzy inference process: fuzzification of the input variables, application of the fuzzy operator (AND or OR) in the antecedent, implication from the antecedent to the consequent, aggregation of the consequents across the rules using Fuzzy reasoning and defuzzification.
- 4) Confirmation of results by checking the uniformity of pixel colours.
- 5) Classification of cataract into its predefined types nuclear and cortical, if the cataract appears at the center of an image and within some allowable radius, the type of the cataract detected is nuclear, if it lies outside the specified radius the type of cataract is cortical.
- 6) Grading of cortical cataract on the LOCS-III scale of C1 to C5.

1.3 Problem statement

To develop an effective cataract diagnostic system and classifier with high accuracy which will solve problems associated with subjective clinical grading and removing inconsistencies over time in different observers.

1.4 Organization of Thesis

This dissertation is organized into 6 remainder of the thesis is organized as follows:

Chapter 1 – **Introduction** gives an overview of the topic and project work and states the aim and objectives of the research work.

Chapter 2 – Literature Survey provides general background of cataract and its types. It explains the existing methods used for detection. It also gives reference and an overview of similar applications.

Chapter 3 – Research Design gives information about the Research Methodology used for cataract detection, it begins with the techniques followed for extracting the region of interest from the cataract infected eye image called Image cropping. The system is developed in MATLAB environment. The detection procedure includes extraction of pixel colours and pixel co-ordinates passing them to Fuzzy inference system and extracting results from the system after defuzzification.

Chapter 4 – Data Collection gives details of data collection, preprocessing and analysis.

Chapter 5 – Results and Conclusions presents results and discussion of proposed Detector, validation methods used and computation of percentage accuracy.

Conclusions gives the aims and motivation which resulted in this research work. It briefly reviews the research work and also explains how the research work will contribute to the welfare of the society. A comparison with related work is also mentioned. This chapter also states the limitations and scope for future work.

CHAPTER 2

Background Theory and Literature Survey

2.1 Cataract Background

A cataract is a clouding that develops in the crystalline lens of the eye or in its envelope, varying in degree from slight to complete opacity and obstructing the passage of light.

Cataract is considered as an eye disorder, which normally turns the vision blurred. Generally, older people are engulfed by this eye problem. If detected timely, it could easily be removed by surgery, but delay in its detection may also turn its removal quite difficult.



Figure 2.1 : Image of an eye with cataract

There are three regions in the image. The outer white portion is called the sclera, the central portion is black in the normal eye. In a cataract eye it appears to be white or blue, the region between the pupil and sclera is called the Iris.

A thorough eye examination by an ophthalmologist can detect the presence and extent of a cataract¹, as well as any other conditions that may be causing blurred vision or other eye problems.

2.1.1 Types of Cataract

Based on the appearance of the cloudiness in the pupil, the cataract is classified as follows:

Senile cataract

A senile cataract has three types ⁴

Subcapsular – These cataracts may be anterior or posterior. The anterior variety lies directly under the lens capsule and is associated with fibrous metaplasia of the anterior epithelim of the lens. The posterior type lies just in front of the posterior capsule and is associated with posterior migration of the epithelial cells of the lens. Patients with posterior subcapsular opacities are particularly troubled by headlights of oncoming cars and by bright sunlight. Their vision for near is also frequently diminished more than their distant vision.

Nuclear cataract - This type of cataract is an exaggeration of the normal ageing³ change involving the pupil nucleus. It is frequently associated with myopia due to an increase in the refractive index of the nucleus and also with increased spherical aberration.

Cortical cataract – This type of cataract is one in which the opacification involves³ the anterior, posterior or equatorial cortex .The opacities frequently assume a radial spoke like or shield like configuration and eventually the entire cortex becomes opacified. The appearance of this type of cataract is at the periphery of the pupil.



Figure 2.2: Two types of Senile cataract⁴

Traumatic⁴

This is the most common cause of unilateral cataract in young individuals³. Lens opacity may be due to various types of injuries e.g. Penetrating objects with direct injury to the lens may cause lens opacities.

Metabolic⁴

Diabetic cataract

Diabetes is associated with two types of cataract.

- 1) Senile cataract which appears earlier and may progress more rapidly in a diabetic patient than in a non diabetic patient.
- 2) True diabetic cataract which is due to osmotic over hydration of the lens and appears as bilateral white punctuate or snowflake posterior or anterior opacities .

Morphological cataract⁴

Six main morphological cataract types are recognized

> Capsular

- 1) Posterior polar opacities as well as with pyramidal cataracts in which the opacity
- ⁴ Available from: Jack J. Kanski, Book Clinical ophthalmology, second edition projects into the anterior chamber

2) Acquired capsular opacities occur in pseudo exfoliation syndrome, gold toxicity, glass blowers cataract and Vossius ring

> Subcapsular

These may be posterior or anterior

- 1)Posterior subcapsular opacities are typical of secondary (complicated)
- cataracts but may also be found in associated with dystrophiamyotonica, drugs (corticosteroids), irradiation and senile (cupuliform) cataract.
- 2)Anterior subcapsular opacities occur in glaukomflecken, Wilson's disease and miotic therapy.

> Nuclear

1)Congenital nuclear opacities occur in Rubella in which the entire Embryonic nucleus is opaque.

- 5
- 2)Senile nuclear sclerosis.

> Cortical

 Congenital cortical opacities are very common and do not usually interfere with vision. They may be white or have a deep blue hue.
 A subtype of a congenital cortical opacity is a coronary cataract which surrounds the lens nucleus like a crown.

2)Senile cortical (cuneiform) cataracts start as vacuoles and clefts between the lens fibers. Opacification of the clefts leads to the formation of the typical radial spoke – like pattern which is best appreciated against the red reflex

> Lamellar

This type of opacity, which is invariably congenital, involves one lamella of the fetal or nuclear zones. Radial spoke – like opacities (riders) frequently surround the cataract

> Sutural

These are very common, congenital, Y – shaped opacities within the lens nucleus. They are of no clinical significance

In this research work, the aim was to detect only age-related cataracts which are also called as Senile cataracts and have the following types:

- Nuclear
- Cortical

2.1.2 Manual cataract detection system

A thorough eye examination through a Slit lamp by an ophthalmologist detects the presence and the extent of a cataract. If the lens of the eye appears to be cloudy, the cataract is detected. The cataract formation represents an opaque white or light blue shade on the pupil. The colour of the pupil of a normal eye is black. The cataract detection and classification can be performed on an image of a dilated pupil. The grading of cataract can be performed only on retro – illumination images i.e. lens images. These lens images are compared with the standards specified by LOCS-III. The colour intensity of the lens image is compared to a set of photographs. in LOCS-III and is graded based on its closest match with respect to the photographs.

2.1.3 Manual cataract classification system

Cataracts are detected and classified when an eye is viewed through a slit lamp. If the opaqueness is at the center of the pupil the type of cataract is Nuclear, if the opaqueness is at the periphery of the pupil the type of cataract is Cortical.

2.1.4 Manual cataract grading system

To grade a cataract to depict its advancement Slit-lamp bio-microscopy is used. The lens of an eye lies behind the pupil and is visible when Slit-lamp bio-microscopy is performed. The image of a lens which is also termed as retro-illumination image is compared with a set of standard photographs. This process is also termed as clinical grading. Two clinical cataract grading systems are mainly used

1)Oxford clinical cataract and grading systems

2)Lens opacities classification system III (LOCS - III)

The clinical grading systems are subjective and thus they are vulnerable to in-consistencies over time and in different observers



Figure 2.3: The LOCS III standards

The above figure shows five retro- illumination images for grading cortical cataract and five retro-illumination images for grading posterior sub-capsular cataract. These standard images exemplify the boundaries of scaling intervals. To grade nuclear opalescence, the average opalescence of the entire nucleus is compared with that of opalescence in each of the standard images.

2.2 Literature Survey

Cataracts can be identified by the presence of opaqueness in the lens of an image of the eye. Some successful attempts have been made for Image analysis of nuclear cataract to determine the reproducibility of densitometric measurements of the lens nucleus (Benjamin V. Magno, Valeria Freidlin and Maneul B. Datiles, 1994) A study was conducted to determine the capability of National Eye Institute Scheimpflug system in detecting changes in the nuclear region(Benjamin V. Magno, Valeria Freidlin and Maneul B. Datiles, 1995) Some successful attempts have been made for automatic grading of nuclear cataract (Huiqi Li, Joo Hweel Lim, Jiang Liu, Tien Yin Wong, 2007). Some methods used were Support Vector Machines and Neural Network.

2.2.1 Approach based on Support Vector Machine

An Active Shape Machine was investigated for the extraction of lens contour. The color information on the central posterior subcapsular reflex was selected as the feature for grading. (Huiqi Li, Joo Hwee Lim, Jiang Liu, Tien Yin Wong, Ava Tan, Jie Jin and Paul Michell, Proc. SPIE, Vol 6915, 2008). The Support Vector Machine (SVM) scheme is proposed to grade nuclear cataract automatically.

The above research work was focused only on grading of cataract and not its detection, the assumption was that the images supplied to the system were of nuclear cataract and only nuclear cataracts were graded. The methodology followed used Support vector machines for the grading process.

2.2.2 Approach based on Fuzzy Logic

The past few years have witnessed a rapid growth in the number and variety of applications of fuzzy logic. The applications range from consumer products such as cameras, camcorders, washing machines, and microwave ovens to industrial process control, medical instrumentation, decision-support systems, and portfolio selection.

Research based on Image classification, has demonstrated the potential usefulness of incorporating fuzziness in the training, allocation and testing stages

of several classification techniques. A lot of work has been done in Fuzzy Image classification. Yannis S Avrathis and Stefanos D Kollias (2000) developed a multiresolution neural network approach to supervised classification to exploit the inherent fuzziness. In order to perform classification at different resolution levels and gain in computational complexity. In particular, multiresolution image analysis is carried out and hierarchical neural networks are used as an efficient architecture for classification of the derived multiresolution image representations. A new scheme has been introduced for transferring classification results to higher resolutions based on the fuzziness of the results of lower resolutions, resulting in faster implementation. Experimental results on land cover mapping applications from remotely sensed data have illustrated significant improvements in classification speed without deterioration of representation accuracy.

In another application the use of Fuzzy Logic was illustrated for Image edge detection(Shashank Mathur, Anil Ahlawat, 2008) the contempory Fuzzy logic helped to implement the fuzzy algorithms to find and highlight all the edges associated with an image by checking the relative pixel values in an image. An exhaustive scanning of an image using the windowing technique was subjected to a set of fuzzy conditions for the comparison of pixel values. After the testing of fuzzy conditions, appropriate values were allocated to the pixels in the window under testing to provide an image highlighted with all the associated edges.

The work in this Thesis proposed a method for detection as well as grading of cataract using Fuzzy Inference System. Grading of cortical cataract has been implemented based on the colour intensity of the images.

2.3 An Introduction to Fuzzy Logic

The real world is complex; complexity in the world generally arises from uncertainty in the form of ambiguity. Humans have the capacity to reason approximately. In reasoning about a complex system, humans reason approximately about its behavior, thereby maintaining only a generic understanding about the problem. Dr Zadeh's principle of incompatibility suggests complexity and ambiguity are co-related " The closer one looks at a real- world problem, the fuzzier becomes its solution (Zadeh, 1973)

Fuzzy logic has rapidly become one of the most successful of today's technologies for developing sophisticated control systems. The reason is its simplicity. Fuzzy logic addresses such applications perfectly as it resembles human decision making with an ability to generate precise solutions from certain or approximate information. It fills an important gap in engineering design methods left vacant by purely mathematical approaches (e.g. linear control design), and purely logic-based approaches (e.g. expert systems) in system design.

Fuzzy reasoning provides a way to understand system behavior by allowing us to interpolate approximately between observed input and output situations. Fuzzy systems can implement crisp inputs and outputs, and in such case produce a nonlinear functional mapping.

Following are the reasons to use Fuzzy logic:

- Fuzzy logic is conceptually easy to understand. The mathematical concepts behind fuzzy reasoning are very simple. The importance of Fuzzy logic lies in the "naturalness" of its approach and not its far-reaching complexity.
- 2) Fuzzy logic is flexible. With any given system, it's easy to wrap it or layer more functionality on top of it without starting again from scratch.
- 3) Fuzzy logic is tolerant of imprecise data. Everything is imprecise if a closer look is given to a problem, but more than that, most things are imprecise even on careful examination. Fuzzy reasoning builds this understanding into the process rather than tacking it onto the end.
- 4) Fuzzy logic can model nonlinear functions of arbitrary complexity. You can create a fuzzy system to match any set of input-output data. This process is made particularly easy by techniques like Fuzzy Inference System and Adaptive Neuro-Fuzzy Inference Systems (ANFIS), which are available in the Fuzzy Logic Toolbox.
- 5) Fuzzy logic can be built on top of the experience of experts. In direct contrast to neural networks, which take training data and generate opaque, impenetrable models,

fuzzy logic lets us rely on the experience of people who already understand our system.

- 6) Fuzzy logic can be blended with conventional control techniques. Fuzzy systems don't necessarily replace conventional control methods. In many cases fuzzy systems augment them and simplify their implementation.
- 7) Fuzzy logic is based on natural language. The basis for fuzzy logic is the basis for human communication.

Fuzzy set theory provides a means for representing uncertainties. The underlying power of fuzzy set theory is that it uses linguistic variables rather than quantitative variables to represent imprecise concepts.

A fuzzy set is a set containing elements that have varying degrees of membership in the set. In a crisp or classical sets members would not be present in the set unless their membership was full or complete as such their membership is assigned a value of 1. But, members in a fuzzy set can also be members of other fuzzy sets on the same universe as their membership need not be complete or 1.

A Mathematical function which defines the degree of an element's membership in a fuzzy set is called membership function. The natural description of problems, in linguistic terms, rather than in terms of relationships between precise numerical values is the major advantage of this theory.

The concept of fuzzy logic is to map an input space to an output space, and the primary mechanism for doing this is a list of if-then statements called rules. All rules are evaluated in parallel, and the order of the rules is unimportant. The rules themselves are useful because they refer to variables and the adjectives that describe those variables. Before we can build a system that interprets rules, we have to define all the terms we plan on using and the adjectives that describe them.



(interpret) (assign)

Figure 2.4: Generalized fuzzy system

Fuzzy inference is a method that interprets the values in the input vector and, based on some set of rules, assigns values to the output vector.

Control applications, such as temperature control, traffic control or process control are the most prevalent of current fuzzy logic applications.

2.3.1 Logical Operations

The most important thing to realize about fuzzy logical reasoning is the fact that it is a superset of standard Boolean logic. In other words, if we keep the fuzzy values at their extremes of 1 (completely true), and 0 (completely false), standard logical operations will hold. As an example, consider the standard truth tables below

А	В	A and B
0	0	0
0	1	0
1	0	0
1	1	1

Table 2.1: AND operation

А	В	A or B
0	0	0
0	1	1
1	0	1
1	1	1

Table 2.2: OR operation

А	not A
0	0
1	1

Table 2.3: NOT operation

The min operation can be used to preserve the results obtained from the AND truth table and also extend to all real numbers between 0 and 1. This is done by resolving the statement A AND B, where A and B are limited to the range (0,1), by using the function min(A,B). Using the same reasoning, the OR operation can be replaced with the max function, so that A OR B becomes equivalent to max(A,B). Finally, the operation NOT A becomes equivalent to the operation.

А	В	min(A, B)
0	0	0
0	1	0
1	0	0
1	1	1

The following tables illustrate the above concept.

Table 2.4: AND operation

А	В	max(A, B)
0	0	0
0	1	1
1	0	1
1	1	1

Table 2.5: OR operation

А	1- A
0	0
1	1

 Table 2.6: NOT operation

2.3.2 If – Then Rules

Fuzzy sets and fuzzy operators are the subjects and verbs of fuzzy logic. The if-then rule statements are used to formulate the conditional statements that comprise fuzzy logic. A single fuzzy if-then rule is of the form if x is A then y is B, here A and B are linguistic values defined by fuzzy sets on the ranges (universes of discourse) X and Y, respectively. The if-part of the rule "x is A" is called the antecedent or premise, while the then-part of the rule "y is B" is called the consequent or conclusion.

The following example illustrates the if- then rules

Consider people and their degree of "youth ness". In this case the set S⁴ (the universe of discourse) is the set of people. A fuzzy subset YOUNG is also defined, which answers the question "to what degree is person x young?" To each person in the universe of discourse, we have to assign a degree of membership in the fuzzy subset YOUNG. The easiest way to do this is with a membership function based on the person's age.

young(x) = { 1, if age(x) <= 20, (30-age(x))/10, if 20 < age(x) <= 30, 0, if age(x) > 30 }



Figure 2.5: A plot of membership function based on persons age⁴

Consider the following values as an example:

Person	Age	degree of youth
A	10	1.00
В	21	0.90
С	25	0.50
D	26	0.40
E	28	0.20
F	83	0.00

So given this definition, we'd say that the degree of truth of the statement "C is YOUNG" is 0.50.

4 Available from http://www.doc.ic.ac.uk

2.3.3 Implication

Interpreting an if-then rule involves distinct parts:

1.Evaluating the antecedent which involves fuzzifying the input and applying any necessary fuzzy operators

2. Applying that result to the consequent also known as implication

In the case of two-valued or binary logic, if-then rules are easy. If the premise is true, then the conclusion is true. If the antecedent is true to some degree of membership, then the consequent is also true to that same degree. In binary logic: $p \rightarrow q$ (p and q are either both true or both false.) in fuzzy logic: $0.5 p \rightarrow 0.5 q$ (partial antecedents provide partial implication.)The antecedent of a rule can have multiple parts e.g.⁵ if sky is gray and wind is strong and barometer is falling, then ...in which case all parts of the antecedent are calculated simultaneously and resolved to a single number using the logical operators described in the preceding section.

The consequent of a rule can also have multiple parts e.g.⁵ if temperature is cold then hot water valve is 'open' and cold water valve is 'closed' which case all consequents are affected equally by the result of the antecedent. The consequent specifies a fuzzy set be assigned to the output. The implication function then modifies that fuzzy set to the degree specified by the antecedent. The most common ways to modify the output fuzzy set are truncation using the 'min' function or scaling using the 'prod' function

2.3.4 Aggregation

Since decisions are based on the testing of all of the rules in an FIS, the rules must be combined in some manner in order to make a decision. Aggregation is the process by which the fuzzy sets that represent the outputs of each rule are combined into a single fuzzy set. Aggregation only occurs once for each output variable, just prior to the fifth and final step, defuzzification. The input of the aggregation process is the list of truncated output functions returned by the implication process for each rule. The output of the aggregation process is one fuzzy set for each output variable. As long as the

33

aggregation method is commutative, then the order in which the rules are executed is unimportant. Three built-in methods are supported: max (maximum), probor (probabilistic OR), and sum (simply the sum of each rule's output set).

2.3.5 Defuzzification

The method defuzzification is the conversion of a fuzzy quantity to a precise quantity. The output of a fuzzy process can be a logical union of two or more fuzzy membership functions defined on the universe of discourse of the output variable. There are atleast seven methods for defuzzification.

Four of the most popularly used methods are as follows:⁵

1. Max-membership principle: This method is limited to peaked output functions. This method is given by the algebraic expression

 $\mu_{C}(Z^{*}) \ge \mu_{C}(Z)$ for all $z \in Z$

2. Centroid method: This method is also called 'center of area' or 'center of gravity' is the most commomly used method. This method is given by the algebraic expression

$$Z^* = \frac{\int \mu_{C}(z) \cdot z dz}{\int \mu_{C}(z) \cdot dz}$$

3. Weighted average method: This method is only valid for symmetrical output membership function. This method is given by the algebraic expression

$$Z^* = \underbrace{\sum \mu_{C(z)} \overline{z}}_{\sum \mu_{C(z)}}$$

where \sum denotes an algebraic sum

⁵ Book: Fuzzy Logic with Engineering Application by Timothy Ros

4. Mean – max membership: This method is also called 'middle of maxima' which is closely related to the first method, except that the locations of the maximum membership can be non-unique. This method is given by the expression

$$Z^* = \underline{(a+b)}_2$$

2.4 Fuzzy Inference System

Fuzzy inference system which formulates the mapping from a given input to an output using fuzzy logic⁶. The mapping then provides a platform from which decisions can be made. The process of fuzzy inference involves all of the pieces that are described in the previous sections: membership functions, fuzzy logic operators, and if-then rules. There are two types of fuzzy inference systems namely: Mamdani-type and Sugeno-type. These two types of inference systems vary in the way their outputs are determined.

Fuzzy inference systems have been successfully applied in fields such as automatic control, data classification, decision analysis, expert systems, and computer vision. Mamdani's fuzzy inference method is the most commonly seen fuzzy methodology. Mamdani's method was among the first control systems built using fuzzy set theory. It was proposed in 1975 by Ebrahim Mamdani [Mam75] as an attempt to control a steam engine and boiler combination by synthesizing a set of linguistic control rules obtained €from experienced human operators. Mamdani's effort was based on Lotfi Zadeh's 1973 paper on fuzzy algorithms for complex systems and decision processes [Zad73].

The Mamdani-type inference, expects the output membership functions to be fuzzy sets. After the aggregation process, there is a fuzzy set for each output variable that needs defuzzification. it is possible, and in many cases much more efficient, to use a single spike as the output membership function rather than a distributed fuzzy set. This is sometimes known as a singleton output membership function, and it can be thought of as

⁶Available from: www.mathworks.com

a pre-defuzzified fuzzy set. It enhances the efficiency of the defuzzification process because it greatly simplifies the computation required by the more general Mamdani method, which finds the centroid of a two-dimensional function rather than integrating across the two-dimensional function to find the centroid, we use the weighted average of a few data points.

The Sugeno-type systems or Takagi-Sugeno-Kang, method of fuzzy inference. introduced in 1985 [Sug85], is similar to the Mamdani method in many respects. The first two parts of the fuzzy inference process, fuzzifying the inputs and applying the fuzzy operator, are exactly the same. The main difference between Mamdani and Sugeno is that the Sugeno output membership functions are either constant or linear.

2.5 Summary

In this chapter we have reviewed the medical concepts of cataract like the different types of cataract. We began with a brief introduction about what a cataract is and their classification as Nuclear, Cortical and sub-capsular based on the appearance of cataract formation. This was followed by a discussion of Literature Survey which reviewed the different approaches used in similar Research areas. An introductory information about Fuzzy Logic was also given in this chapter. We then described the Fuzzy Inference System and its methodology followed to define membership functions, and designing rules to achieve the desired outcome.
CHAPTER 3

Research Design

3.1 Image Cropping

The aim of this work was to identify the presence of cataract in an eye image which is recorded when the eye is viewed through a slit lamp. The images included in the study comprise a portion of the face of the patient and sometimes, even the complicated background. We need to extract only the pupil portion from the image. A lens lies behind the pupil which turns opaque due to the presence of cataract. Image cropping is a technique to achieve the above.



Figure 3.1 : Original image of a subject with cataract eye

The above image includes a portion of the face and the background. The following MATLAB functions were used to crop the image and extract the region of interest.

I2 = imcrop(I)

Here, I is the original image 'imcrop' function returns the cropped image in the supplied output argument I2.

Microsoft Picture Manager also proved to be an alternative tool for image cropping.



Figure 3.2: Image after cropping

The image type under the current study is an RGB image of class uint8



Figure 3.3 : Retro-illumination image of nuclear cataract



Figure 3.4 : Cropped and enhanced retro-illumination image

3.2 Image enhancement

The cropped image was enhanced using 'stretchlim' which finds limits to contrast stretch an image

LOW_HIGH = stretchlim(I,TOL) LOW_HIGH = stretchlim(RGB,TOL)

The above function returns a pair of intensities that can be used by 'imadjust' to increase the contrast of an image. TOL=[LOW_FRACT HIGH_FRACT] specifies the fraction of the image to saturate at low and high intensities. If TOL is a scalar, TOL = LOW_FRACT, and HIGH_FRACT = 1 - LOW_FRACT, which saturates equal fractions at low and high intensities.

Using 'stretchlim' the image 'I' was enhanced by the following functions

I = imread(F:\check.jpg);
J = imadjust(I, stretchlim(I),[]);

The functions were useful for enhancing the clearity of the image.

3.3 Extract Data of Interest

The next step after image enhancement is to determine pixel colour values. The code for extracting the Red, Green, Blue values comprised of the following MATLAB function:

pixval = impixel[I, c, r]

Here, I is the image object, r and c are equal-length vectors specifying the coordinates of the pixels whose RGB values are returned in pixval. The k^{th} row of pixval contains the RGB values for the pixel (r(k),c(k)). The 'impixel' function works with indexed, intensity and RGB images, impixel always returns pixel values as RGB triplets irrespective of the image type. For an RGB image, impixel returns the actual data for the pixel. Since the image size for all the images under study is 175x175.

The c, r vectors will have values

c = [1:175] r = [1:175]

The values returned were uint8 integers as the class of image array supplied was uint8. The Red, green and blue values were extracted and stored as three separate files.

3.4 Fuzzy Inference System Approach



Fig 3.5: Preprocessing and Feature Extraction

In the lack of precise mathematical model which will describe the behavior of the current system, Fuzzy Logic Toolbox proved to be a good 'weapon' to solve the problem by using logical if-then rules to describe the system's behavior. This Toolbox is a compilation of functions built on the MATLAB numeric computing environment and provides tools for creating and editing 'Fuzzy Inference Systems' within the MATLAB framework.

The toolbox provides three categories of tools:

- 1. Command line functions
- 2. Graphical interactive tools
- 3. Simulink blocks and examples

Fuzzy Logic Toolbox allows building two types of systems:

- 1. Fuzzy Inference System (FIS)
- 2. Adaptive Neuro-Fuzzy Inference System (ANFIS)

Fuzzy Logic Toolbox was used for developing Fuzzy Inference System for

- 1. Defining membership functions
- 2. Designing fuzzy logic inference rules
- 3. Defuzzification



Fig 3.6: Fuzzy Inference System⁶

There are five primary GUI tools for building, editing, and observing fuzzy inference systems in the Fuzzy Logic Toolbox: the Fuzzy Inference System or FIS Editor, the Membership Function Editor, the Rule Editor, the Rule Viewer, and the Surface Viewer. These GUIs are dynamically linked, i.e. the changes we make to the FIS using one of them, can affect what you see on any of the other open GUIs. You can have any or all of them open for any given system. In addition to these five primary GUIs, the toolbox includes the graphical ANFIS Editor GUI, which is used for building and analyzing Sugeno-type adaptive neural fuzzy inference system.

Fuzzy inference is the process of formulating the mapping from a given input to an output using fuzzy logic.

The process of fuzzy inference involves:

- 1) Membership functions
- 2) Fuzzy logic operators
- 3) If-then rules

There are two types of fuzzy inference systems that can be implemented in the Fuzzy Logic toolbox

- 1) Mamdani
- 2) Sugeno

Mamdani's fuzzy inference method is the most commonly seen fuzzy methodology and it expects the output membership functions to be fuzzy sets. After the aggregation process, there is a fuzzy set for each output variable that is needed to be defuzzified. Sugeno-type systems can be used to model any inference system in which the output membership functions are either linear or constant. This fuzzy inference system was introduced in 1985 and also is called Takagi-Sugeno-Kang. Sugeno output membership functions (z, in the following equation) are either linear or constant.

3.4.1 Membership Function

Membership function is the mathematical function which defines the degree of an element's membership in a fuzzy set.



Figure 3.7 Core, Support and boundaries of a fuzzy set

The *core* of a membership function for some fuzzy set A is defined as that region of the universe that is characterized by complete and full membership in the set A. The core comprises of those elements 'x' of the universe such that $\mu A(x) = 1$.

The *support* of a membership function for some fuzzy set A is defined as that region of the universe that is characterized by nonzero membership in the set A. The support comprises those elements 'x' of the universe such that $\mu A(x) > 0$.

The *boundaries* of a membership function for some fuzzy set A are defined as that region of the universe containing elements that have a nonzero membership but not complete membership.

The Fuzzy Logic Toolbox includes eleven built-in membership function types⁶. These eleven functions are built from several basic functions: piecewise linear functions, the Gaussian distribution function, the sigmoid curve, and quadratic and cubic polynomial

curves. The Membership function editor is used to display and edit all membership functions associated with all of the input and output variables for the complete fuzzy inference system. By convention, all membership functions have the letters 'mf' at the end of their names.

The simplest membership functions are formed using straight lines. Of these, the simplest is the triangular membership function, and it has the function name trimf. It's nothing more than a collection of three points forming a triangle. The trapezoidal membership function, trapmf, has a flat top and really is just a truncated triangle curve. These straight line membership functions have the advantage of simplicity.



Figure 3.8 : Triangular and Trapezoidal Membership function⁷

Two membership functions are built on the Gaussian distribution curve: a simple Gaussian curve and a two-sided composite of two different Gaussian curves. The two functions are gaussmf and gauss2mf. The generalized bell membership function is specified by three parameters and has the function name gbellmf. The bell membership function has one more parameter than the Gaussian membership function, so it can approach a non-fuzzy set if the free parameter is tuned. Because of their smoothness and concise notation, Gaussian and bell membership functions are popular methods for specifying fuzzy sets. Both of these curves have the advantage of being smooth and nonzero at all points.

⁷ Available from http://www.ajes.com, also available at www.mathworks.com



Figure 3.9: Gaussian and bell membership function⁷

Although the Gaussian membership functions and bell membership functions achieve smoothness, they are unable to specify asymmetric membership functions, which are important in certain applications.

The sigmoid membership function, which is either open left or right. Asymmetric and closed (i.e. not open to the left or right) membership functions can be synthesized using two sigmoidal functions, so in addition to the basic sigmf, we also have the difference between two sigmoidal functions, dsigmf, and the product of two sigmoidal functions psigmf.



Figure 3.10: Sigmoidal membership function⁷

Polynomial based curves account for several of the membership functions in the toolbox. Three related membership functions are the Z, S, and Pi curves, all named with respect to their shape. The function zmf is the asymmetrical polynomial curve open to the

left, smf is the mirror-image function that opens to the right, and pimf is zero on both extremes with a rise in the middle.



Figure 3.11: Polynomial membership functions⁷

The Fuzzy Logic Toolbox also allows us to create our own membership functions if the above list seems to be too restrictive.



In the current study, Trapezoidal membership function was used.

Figure 3.12: Trapezoidal membership function

3.4.2 Membership Function for Cataract Detection and classification

Trapezoidal membership function accepts four membership parameters [X,Y, Xi,Yi] here [X,Y] is the starting minimum value for the membership function, [Xi,Yi] is the maximum value for the membership function. The membership function spans over this minimum and maximum range.

Two membership functions were designed for the input Red, Green, Blue for the fuzzy Inference system

- 1)Input1 If the Red value is between 0 to 100 the membership function is 'Darkshade'.If the red value is between 101 to 255 the membership function is 'Lightshade'.
- 2)Input2 If the Green value is between 0 to 100 the membership function is 'Darkshade'. If the green value is between 101 to 255, the membership function is 'Lightshade'.
- 3)Input3 If the Blue value is between 0 to 100 the membership function is 'Darkshade'.If the green value is between 101 to 255, the membership function is 'Lightshade'.

Three membership functions were designed for the input Xdata, Ydata

- 4)Input 4 If the Xdata value is between 68 to 108 the membership function is 'centerportion'. If the Xdata value is between 0 to 67, the membership function is 'outer1'. If the Xdata value is between 109 to 175, the membership function is 'outer2'.
- 5)Input 5 If the Ydata value is between 68 to 108, the membership function is 'centerportion', If the Xdata value is between 0 to 67, the membership function is 'outer1'. If the Xdata value is between 109 to 175, the membership function is 'outer2'.

The membership function always takes values between 0 to 1

The presence of cataract is detected by the existence of pixels with white or light shades of blue, yellow, gray. A study of the RGB values of all these colours indicated that the values were lying above 100. So, rules were formulated to check if the pixel colours were lying above this threshold. Hence rule 1, 2 and 3 were framed considering the above discussion.

The size of the images under study were restricted to 175 x 175. The computation of the regions were as shown in fig. 3.13. Since the image size is restricted, the center of the image lies at location (88, 88). A study of nuclear and cortical cataract was carried out to know the location of the cataract pixels. The study put light on the fact that nuclear cataract appears at the nucleus of the lens i.e. center of the lens and may span to some radial distance from the center. The cortical cataract lies at the periphery of the lens i.e. away from the center. The 'center-region' and 'outer1' and 'outer2' were initially some arbitrary values considering certain assumptions. This was applied to several images to identify the range of co-ordinates where the cataract pixels lie for the above two predefined types of cataracts.

3.4.3 Membership Function for Grading of Cortical Cataract

The intensity of Red, Green, Blue values was computed for the five retroillumination images represented by C1, C2, C3, C4, C5 (refer fig3.15) by cropping the images so as to identify the pure intensity shade for each grade and then identifying the maximum and minimum values for each colour ie. Red, Green, Blue

Five membership functions were designed for the three inputs

- 1. If Red lies in to intensity values of c1 then it represents mf 'c1'
- 2. If Red lies in to intensity values of c2 then it represents mf 'c2'
- 3. If Red lies in to intensity values of c3 then it represents mf 'c3'
- 4. If Red lies in to intensity values of c4 then it represents mf 'c4'
- 5. If Red lies in to intensity values of c5 then it represents mf 'c5'

The above five membership functions also were designed for the second and third

input namely, Green and Blue based on the intensity values for Green and Blue.

3.4.4 Fuzzy Logic Operators

The Fuzzy logical reasoning is a superset of standard Boolean logic. In other words, if the fuzzy values are kept at their extremes of 1 (completely true) and 0 (completely false), standard logical operations will hold. That is, A AND M operator is replaced with minimum - min(A,M) operator, A OR M with maximum - max (A,M) and NOT M with 1-M. The AND operation is used to formulate rules with membership function variables for each of the inputs to the Fuzzy Inference System.

3.4.5 If-Then Rules

Fuzzy sets and fuzzy operators are the subjects and verbs of fuzzy logic Usually the knowledge involved in fuzzy reasoning is expressed as rules in the form:

If x is A Then y is B

where x and y are fuzzy variables and A and B are fuzzy values. The if-part of the rule "x is A" is called the antecedent or premise, while the then-part of the rule "y is B" is called the consequent or conclusion. Statements in the antecedent (or consequent) parts of the rules may well involve fuzzy logical connectives such as 'AND' and 'OR'. In the if-then rule, the word 'is' gets used in two entirely different ways depending on whether it appears in the antecedent or the consequent part.

3.4.6 Rule Formulation for Cataract Detection

An appearance of cataract is generally identified by white or colours with light shades. The input Red, Green, Blue are true colours of an RGB image, the input and display range is 0 to 255. These pixel colour values i.e. the Red, Green, Blue intensity values of all pixels in an image were passed as input to the Fuzzy inference system along their (X, Y) co-ordinates.

Rules were framed in the Fuzzy Sense to differentiate between different levels and shades of colors in the human perspective. Fuzzy output will differentiate between ambiguous colors. Every pixel in the image will be discriminated using fuzzy rules. The output will indicate the type of the cataract. If presence of the cataract is identified, or its absence will be indicated as non-cataract.

If the pixel colours match to 'Lightshade' then a cataract is detected. If the pixel colours match to 'Darkshade'; this indicates the absence of cataract. The output from the Fuzzy Inference System is further verified by changing plots in surface viewer.

3.4.7 Rule Formulation for Cataract Classification

A cataract is classified as nuclear cataract when the appearance of the cataract is at the center of the pupil. A cataract is classified as cortical cataract when the appearance of the cataract is at the outer part of the pupil i.e. away from the center and towards the periphery.



Figure 3.13 : Cropped image of a Cataract Eye

In the above figure the image is of size (175, 175). The top left corner represents the origin(0, 0) the bottom right corner indicates the max (X, Y) value (175, 175). All the images i.e regular image and retro-illumination images are restricted to a size of (175 x 175).

(0, 0)



(175, 175)

Figure 3.14: Classification of Cataract Region

In the figure, C indicates the center of the axis located at position (X,Y) = (88, 88). CR indicates the center region and is shown in the inner rectangle. The top leftmost point of the inner rectangle is (68, 68) and the bottom rightmost point of the inner rectangle is (108, 108). The center region indicates the nuclear region of an image of cataract eye. 'Outer1' indicates the periphery region of cataract eye. The pixels whose co-ordinates lie in the range (1,1) and (67, 67) belong to the membership function 'Outer1'. 'Outer1' and 'Outer2' indicates the periphery region of cataract eye. The pixels whose co-ordinates lie in the range (109,109) and (255, 255) belong to the membership function 'Outer2'

The actual membership function design to categorize the XData are as follows:

- 1. If XData has a value between 1 to 67, X co-ordinate lies in 'Outer1' region
- 2. If XData has a value between 68 to 108, X co-ordinate lies in 'centerregion'
- 3. If XData has a value between 109 to 175, X co-ordinate lies in 'Outer2' region

The actual membership function design to categorize the YData are as follows:

- 1. If YData has a value between 1 to 67, Y co-ordinate lies in 'Outer1' region
- 2. If YData has a value between 68 to 108, Y co-ordinate lies in 'centerregion'
- 3. If YData has a value between 109 to 175, Y co-ordinate lies in 'Outer2' region



Figure 3.15: Membership function formulation for XData

To identify cataract the following rules were formulated:

- Rule 1 If (Xdata is centerportion) and (Ydata is centerportion) and (Red is Lightshade) and (Green is Lightshade) and (Blue is Lightshade) then (output is Nuclearcataract)
- Rule 2 If (Xdata is Outer1) and (Ydata is Outer1) and (Red is Lightshade) and (Green is Lightshade) and (Blue is Lightshade) then (output is Corticalcataract)
- Rule 3 If (Xdata is Outer2) and (Ydata is Outer2) and (Red is Lightshade) and (Green is Lightshade) and (Blue is Lightshade) then (output is Corticalcataract)
- Rule 4 (Red is Darkshade) and (Green is Darkshade) and (Blue is Darkshade) then (output is noncataract)

All the above rules have a weightage of '1'

It is very important to know that by medical definition even if any small opacity is encountered the cataract is detected. In the computation of 'status' of the eye even if one opaque pixel with 'light shade' is encountered the 'status' is 'cataract'.

To verify the region properties of an image the following MATLAB function was used

STATS = regionprops(L,properties)

It measures a set of properties for each labeled region in the label matrix L. Positive integer elements of L correspond to different regions. For example, the set of elements of L equal to 1 corresponds to region 1; the set of elements of L equal to 2 corresponds to region 2; and so on. The return value STATS is a structure array of length $\max(L(:))$. The fields of the structure array denote different measurements for each region, as specified by properties. The 'Centroid' property can be used to check center of mass,

'Centroid' is a one-by-ndims(L) vector, and represents the center of mass of the region.

3.4.8 Rule formulation for Grading of Cortical Cataract

Grading of cataract can only be done on retro-illumination images. The lens of an eye which lies behind the pupil can be viewed in a retro-illumination image. The lens colour is compared with the images in LOCS-III (refer fig 2.2) and is graded based on the colour it closely matches too.







C3



C4

C2



C5

Figure 3.16: Cropped retro-illumination images of cortical cataract representing grade C1, C2, C3, C4, C5



Figure 3.17: Slit Lamp image of a nuclear cataract (left) and its retroillumination image (right) 8

The above figure shows the two types of images captured through a slit-lamp. ⁸ Available from <u>http://www.myeyeworld.com</u>



Figure 3.18: Slit Lamp image of a cortical cataract ⁸

The pixel colours are extracted and their minimum and maximum range is computed for each of the gradings c1, c2, c3, c4, c5. This is passed to a separate Fuzzy inference System developed for 'grading' cataract. This FIS has membership functions which represent these five regions, the input to this system is the Red, Green and Blue values of a retro-illumination image. The system then applies the rules in the fuzzy sense i.e with human perspective to grade the cataract into one of its five grades.

3.4.4 Aggregation and Deffuzzification

The method defuzzification is required to convert a fuzzy quantity to a precise quantity. The deffuzzification method used in the current study is 'centroid'. algebraic expression

 $\begin{aligned} \int \mu_{C}(z) \, dz \\ Z^* &= \underbrace{\int \mu_{C}(z) \, dz} \end{aligned}$



Figure 3.19: Centroid defuzzification method

3.5 Summary

In this chapter, we have presented the details of how an image is cropped and enhanced for clarity. It also explains how data of interest is extracted from an image. The Fuzzy Inference System approach to design membership functions and Rules for cataract detection and classification is explained in detail. The method used for grading of cataract using retro-illumination images is also explained along with its Rule Formulation.

CHAPTER 4 - Data Generation

4.1 Data Collection Method

The data generation method used for this Research was Observation and Recording. The data required for cataract detection was the cataract eye images which were collected from the OPD of H.V Desai Hospital, Mohammed Wadi, Pune and Ganga Clinic, Pune. The images were recorded on a digital camera when the eye was viewed through a slit lamp. A total number of 52 images were collected for the study. The original size of the images collected were 2272 x 1704. The type of the images were 'jpg'.

This part of the Research was an Overt Research, as the fact of observation taking place was known to all the patients whose eye images were being recorded.

A schedule was prepared for the Observation which was as follows:

Date:

Observer:

Sr. No	Name of	Age	Operated for	Type of
	Patient		cataract before	cataract
			(Y/N)	detected

Table 4.1: Schedule for data collection

The data being collected was used to study which type of cataract is often developed by people in a specific age group. The type of the data collected is Qualitative data which includes the collection of two types of images of the eye when viewed through a slit-lamp

1) Normal view of eye – 52 images

2) Retro-illumination view - 10 images

4.1.1 Data Analysis

To begin identifying key themes in the data the following segments were considered

- 1) Segments that bear no relation to the overall research purpose so are not needed eg: the area around the eyes, background of the image.
- Segments that provide general descriptive information that is needed in order to describe the research context eg: relation between age and cataract type detected.
- 3) Segments that appear to be relevant to your research eg: pupil in the eye image

The images used are non-textual qualitative data, for this type of data we need to get all the Research material into a form which is ready for analysis.

The image type was 'jpg', 'png' and belonged to the class of 'uint8'.

4.1.2 Selection of subjects

The people who were being examined at the OPD for cataract were selected for study and their eye images were recorded.

4.2 Data pre-processing

The images collected were RGB images, sometimes referred to as a true-color image, it is stored in MATLAB as an m-by-n-by-3 data array that defines red, green, and blue color components for each individual pixel. The color of each pixel is determined by the combination of the red, green, and blue intensities stored in each color plane at the pixel's location. An RGB array can be of class double, uint8, or uint16. The images under study were of class uint8. The three color components for each pixel are stored along the third dimension of the data array.

The image acquired by the data collection method (4.1) comprised of regions including portion of the face and sometimes included the complex background. Data pre-processing was required to eliminate such noise which could affect the accuracy of the system. The images were cropped and only the portion of the pupil was extracted from the image , the colour of the pixels was identified and stored in a data file using MATLAB functions .

I2 = imcrop(I)

here, I is the original image and I2 is the cropped image

I2 = imcrop(I, rect)

here, I is the original image and I2 is the cropped image, rect is a four-element vector with the form [xmin, ymin, width, height] these values are specified in spatial coordinates.

The cropped image is of size 175 x175 and belongs to the class uint8. MATLAB functions like 'impixel' are applied to extract the RGB values for the corresponding pixel co-ordinates in that image. These RGB values are supplied as input to the Fuzzy Inference System.

4.3 Summary

This chapter gives light on the method used for data collection, the type of data collected and the source of data collection. It also explains the pre-processing method used to extract the data of interest.

The images were collected from the Outdoor Patient Department of H.V Desai Hospital, Mohammed Wadi, Pune. The images comprised not only of the cataract eye but also included complex background and portion of the face. Hence, there was a need to extract only the region of interest required for the current study.

CHAPTER 5

Results and Conclusion

5.1 Performance of cataract detection algorithm

The basic algorithm for cataract detection works as follows

```
Algo Detect (Image img)
```

- {
- 1. Accept image
- 2. Pre-process image
- 3. Extract region of Interest
- 4. Extract pixel colours
- 5. Identify pixels whose colour matches with shades of cataract
- 6. Detect cataract
- 7. Classify it into one of the two types
- 8. stop.
- }

In the present work, Forty seven eye images with presence of cataract and five images with absence of cataract were tested on a system developed using the above crude algorithm

Accuracy = Total number of images correctly classified

X 100

Total number of images supplied to the system

Only thirty nine out of fifty two images were classified correctly. Therefore, percentage accuracy was only 75 %

Following were the reasons identified for low system accuracy:

- 1) The algorithm could not span accurately for considering the range of pixel colours along with classification based on pixel co-ordinates.
- 2) Neighbourhood pixel colours were not considered for verifying the results

5.2 Performance of cataract detection and classification using Fuzzy Inference System

The Fuzzy Inference system approach proved to be very efficient due to the following reasons:

- 1) The 'naturalness' in the approach to classify colours into its light and dark shades proved to be very useful and more practical.
- 2) The easy way to formulate rules using 'and', 'or' operators allowed to check more conditions which in turn increased the preciseness of the result.
- 3) More rules could be easily added and existing rules could be modified to improve accuracy of the system.
- 4) A wide range of Membership functions were available. The membership function best suited for the current application 'trapmf' was selected.
- 5) The Rule viewer proved to be a very important 'tool' to test the execution of each Rule and membership function plot for a given set of input.
- 6) A surface plot provided a graphical view of the output.

When an image is cropped, the shape of the cropped image is a square, the cropping was done such that the boundary of the pupil is enclosed in the cropping rectangle. Some portion of the iris is also visible at the four corners of the square. The initial FIS worked with high accuracy for images with black or brown iris. But when cropped images with blue iris were passed as input, the outcome was 'cortical' cataract. To correct this problem the membership functions were re-designed and rules were re-formulated to identify the blue and green iris as 'noncataract'. The maximum number of pixels qualifying for a output variable is considered as final output. The performance of the FIS was high .

Out of the fifty two images supplied fifty images were correctly classified. Hence System performance was increased to 96 %

It is important to know that for identifying 'nuclear' and 'cortical' cataracts a normal image of an eye when viewed through a slit lamp is sufficient for analysis. But grading of cataract can only be done on retro-illumination images.

5.3 Performance of grading of cortical cataract

This FIS works on pixel colours of retro – illumination images. This FIS was tested on pixel colours of retro-illumination images. There is very little difference between the shades represented as C1, C2, C3,C4, C5. The system works with average accuracy.

5.4 Testing accuracy of basic algorithm

The accuracy of the basic algorithm was tested manually by supplying a known image i.e. cataract or non-cataract image and comparing the result with known output. The basic algorithm works by accepting the pixel colour values and classifying the pixels based on its colour as cataract or non-cataract. But, the algorithm cannot easily span over all the shades of colours with flexibility.

5.5 Testing accuracy of Fuzzy Inference System

Fuzzy inference system provided some in-built tools which could be used to verify the result. The Rule viewer was used to test the formulation of the rule. Surface viewer provided a plot to compare any two inputs given to the system. 'evalfis' was used to perform fuzzy inference calculations.

```
output= evalfis(input, fismat)
```

[output, IRR, ORR, ARR]= evalfis(input, fismat)

[output, IRR, ORR, ARR]= evalfis(input, fismat, numPts)

Here, input is a matrix specifying input values. If input is an M-by-N matrix, where N is number 5 input variables and M is the number of input rows then evalfis takes each row as an input vector and returns the M-by-L matrix to the variable, output, where each row is an output vector and L is the number of output variables.

The range labels for evalfis are as follows:

input - is a number or a matrix specifying input values. If input is an M-by-N matrix, where N is number of input variables, then evalfis takes each row of input as an input vector and returns the M-by-L matrix to the variable, output, where each row is an output vector.

output - the output matrix of size M-by-L, where M represents the number of input values specified above

L - is the number of output variables for the FIS,

fismat - an FIS structure to be evaluated

The following are optional range variables

IRR - the result of evaluating the input values through the membership functions. This is a matrix of size numRules-by-N, where numRules is the number of rules, and N is the number of input variables

ORR - the result of evaluating the output values through the membership functions. ARR - the numPts-by-L matrix of the aggregate values sampled at numPts along the output range for each output.

A bar plot of the RGB values of an image of size 175 x 175 can also help in checking the accuracy of the system.



Figure 5.1: A bar plot of RGB values

The above bar plot was plotted for a cataract eye image, the plot indicates that most of the RGB values are above 100 hence the output from the FIS is verified.

A surface plot also helps to understand the distribution of RGB values



Figure 5.2: A Surface plot of RGB values

The above figure shows a 3-D surface plot of RGB values which provides a view of the distribution of RGB values on the three dimensional axis.

5.6 Conclusions

The results were verified and system performance was analyzed.

5.6.1 Aims and Motivation

The research work in this thesis is aimed at presenting and evaluating a system for cataract detection and classification which will remove the subjectivity in the current manual method and avoid the existence of an expert (surgeon) for cataract detection and classification, thus relieving him to do other important task like surgery. Almost 70 % of the people in the world are infected by this condition. Which means that there is a high number of population who undergoes the cataract detection process.

An ophthalmologist manually compares the image viewed through a slit lamp with the standard images in LOCS-III. The fact that the clinical detection and grading systems are subjective and are vulnerable to inconsistencies over time in different observers led to a thought of automating this manual process.

5.6.2 Research Review

The application of Image processing techniques on bio-medical images for disease detection has gained importance due to its support for mathematical and knowledge based models. This research work involves the use of knowledge-based fuzzy inference system. These systems are capable of imitating the thought process and behavior of a human expert. In chapter 1 an introduction about cataract and its types is mentioned.

The literature on Opthalmology is vast, but there have been no previous efforts to abstract and document the Computer based techniques used to detect and classify eye disorders. In chapter 2, an attempt has been made to document the different approaches followed for detection and grading of eye disorders with the knowledge base in clinical ophthalmology.

The design presented in chapter 3 is based on Fuzzy Inference System, it began with extracting the data of interest, passing it as input to the FIS, formulation of membership functions and rules to get the desired outcome. A description of grading of Nuclear cataract was also included in this chapter.

The data collected for this research work was pre-processed and sent as input to the FIS. Chapter 4 gives the details of the source of data and the preprocessing method followed for generating data of interest for the current application.

67

The performance of the FIS and the crude approach are compared and the results are summarized in Chapter 5.

5.6.3 Contributions of the Research work

This research work was aimed at contributing to the medical facilities provided for the public.

An ophthalmologist is always consulted for eye examination when blurring of vision occurs. An attempt was made to semi-automate the detection of cataract. Thus, relieving the expert to perform more promising task like cataract surgery.

5.6.4 Comparison with related work

The concept of extracting features from bio-medical images is a new concept, there have been several prior efforts to identify and capture region of interest from these images. There have been prior efforts to detect the Iris portion in an eye image using. Ada-Boost and Neural Network (Zhong Bo Zang, Ping Zuo, Jie Ma, 2005) they developed an instrument for capturing the eye image and localizing the Iris in the captured image. There have been successful attempts to construct a simple, computer-based, quantitative surgical keratometer to measure a 3.0 to 4.0 mm central region of the corneal surface(L. Carvalho, Journal of Cataract & Refractive Surgery Vol 25 ,pp 821 - 826)

The main problem faced in automating the cataract detection was localizing the lens region. Objective quantification of lens images is very essential for cataract assessment and treatment (Huiqi Li, Joo Whee Lim, Jiang Liu, Tien Wong) presented a bottom-up and top-down approach to detect the lens contour from the slit-lamp images. The average intensity inside the lens is employed as the indicator of nuclear opacity.

My research work focuses on extracting the pupil portion from an eye image and applying image preprocessing techniques supported by MATLAB7. The resultant image is processed to extract RGB values which are then supplied as input to the Fuzzy inference system.

Rules were framed in the Fuzzy Sense to differentiate between different levels and shades of colors in the human perspective. Fuzzy output differentiates between ambiguous colors. Every pixel in the image will be discriminated using fuzzy rules. The output will indicate the type of cataract if presence of cataract is identified, or its absence is indicated as non-cataract.

5.6.5 Future work

The research work in this thesis was aimed at presenting a system for Detection and Classification of cataract eye images. Similar techniques can be applied on other bio- medical images for detection of tumors. The workload of radiologists could be halved by using a computer-aided system to help extract and classify the features of a tumor to detect cancer. Hence, only one operator will be needed to look at the results, rather than the usual two. Thus relieving the expert from reading and analyzing results.



Fig 5.3: Image - Normal PET Scan



Fig 5.4 : PET scan showing abnormal lymph nodes

In the above figures, Fig 5.3 shows Normal PET Scan and Fig 5.4 shows abnormal lymph nodes. A comparison between the two figures could put light on special features which indicate the presence of abnormal lymph nodes.

A study of abnormal lymph nodes can be performed on the following lines

- 1. The approximate size of abnormal lymph nodes
- 2. The location of abnormal lymph nodes in a scan

Appendix A - Screen shots

FIS Editor: CATARACTDETECTION					
File Edit View					
Red Creen Creen Cue XCata VCata		CATARACTDETECTION (mamdani)		output	1
FIS Name: CATARACTDET	ECTION		FIS Type:	mamdani	
And method	min	- Currer	nt Variable		
Or method	max	- Name		Red	
Implication	min	т Туре		input	
Aggregation	max	Range		[0 255]	
Defuzzification	centroid		Help		Close
System "CATARACTDETECTION": 5 inputs, 1 output, and 6 rules					
MainThesisrevised5 📣 MATLAB	🛃 FIS Editor: Untitled	FIS Editor: CA	TARAC 🧷 🕫 😰 🛱	🕻 Favorites 📁 🃁 🙆	※ ● 2 ● 2 の 7:09 PM

Screen 1: Cataract Fuzzy Inference System

hortcuts 🖻 How to Add 🕐 What's New											
forkspace			itor - pixels								7
🖬 🌆 🏜 🎽 🐞 🔹 Stack: Base 🔽	1	🗟 👗 🖻	🛍 🎒 [· / /	tm Stack:	Base 💌					80*
ame A Value Class		1	2		3	4	5	6	7	8	9
RGB <175x177x3 uint8> uint8		1	136	110	109						
c <1x175 double> double		2	136	110	109						
pixels <175x3 double> double		3	136	114	116						
r <1x175 double> double		4 5	138	118 120	119 122						
		6	138	120	122					-	-
		7	143	127	123						
		8	143	131	131						
		9	146	136	137						
		10	145	139	139						
		11	145	141	142						
		12	147	145	146						
		13	148	148	148						
		14	148	150	149						-
		15	149 150	153 156	152 154			_			
		16	150	159	154						
		18	151	162	158						
mmand Window		19	153	163	162						
		20	155	167	165						
<pre>> pixels = impixel(RGB, c, r);</pre>		21	156	170	170						
>> bar (pixels, 'DisplayName', 'pixels', 'YDataSource', 'pixels'); f >>		22	160	174	174						
		23	163	179	178						
>> area (pixels, 'DisplayName', 'pixels'); figure(gcf)			167	183	182						
<pre>> errorbar (pixels, 'DisplayName', 'pixels'); figure(gcf)</pre>		25	169	188	186						
<pre>?? Error using ==> errorbar</pre>		26	171	190	188						
ot enough input arguments.		27	175	191	191						
<pre>> hist (pixels); figure(gcf)</pre>		28	178	194 196	194 194						
 surf (pixels); figure(gcf) surf (pixels); figure(gcf) 		29 30	182	201	194					-	
· Sali (pixels), ligule(gol)		31	184	203	201						
•		32	188	203	201					-	
	>	<						6			2

Screen 2: RGB data for an image
e Edit View Grap	hics Debu	ig Deskto	p Win	ndow Help														
i 😅 🕺 🖿 🛍	K) CH	🏹 🗹	?	Current Directo	ry: D:WATLAB7	work 💌 🗈												
nortcuts 🗷 How to A	dd 🛃 Wh	at's New																
orkspace							2	× 📝	Array Edito	r - XDai	ta						7	3
n 🛒 🙋 🎼 🍜	*	- Stac	k: Base	×				-	X 🗈 🛱	1 6	-	t _{III} Stac	k: Base 💌				380	. 5
ame 🔺	Value		0	lass					1		2	3	4	5	6	7	8	
ARR	<101x1	double>	d	ouble				1		1								
Blue	<175x1	double>	d	ouble				2		2								_
Green	<175x1	double>	d	ouble				3		3								_
IRR	<6x5 do	uble>	d	ouble				4		4								_
ORR	<101 x6	double>	d	ouble				5		6						-		-
RGB		77x3 uint8	3> u	int8				7		7			3			-		-
Red	<175x1	double>	d	ouble				8		8					-		-	-
XData	<175x1	double>	d	ouble				9		9								
YData	<175x1	double>	d	ouble				10		10								
c	<1x175	double>	d	ouble				11		11								
fismat	<1x1 st	ruct>	s	truct				12		12							_	_
output	<175x1		d	ouble				13		13 14							-	_
pixels	<175x3	double>	d	ouble				14		14			<u></u>				-	-
l r	<1x175	double>	d	ouble				16		16					-			-
								17		17								-
								18	1	18								
ommand Window							s.	X 19		19								
0 0	0	0	0	0				▲ 20		20								_
0 0	ō	ō	ō	0				21		21						12	_	_
0 0	0	0	0	0				22 23		22 23			2					_
0 0	0	0	0	0				23		24							-	-
0 0	0	0	0	0				24		25					-	-	-	-
0 0	0	0	0	0				26		26								
0 0	0	0	0	0				27	2	27								
0 0	0	0	0	0				28		28								
0 0	0	0	0	0				29		29			_			-		
0 0	0	0	0	0				30		30			-	-		-	_	-1
								31	<	31			1			1		>
>										Blue	X RGB	× Red	X XData	× unnamed2	× output	x		-
			_						anamed 1	DIGIO	100	ritou	Japaid	Sin Rumouz	sapa			-
Start																		
🐈 start 💦 👔	MainTh	nesisrevised		E titlepa	ges - Microsoft	Ca Research4		📣 3 MATLA	в	-	3.	-			2 ×	Se 🗑 🛢 🗎	6 7:14 F	M
											10						🖕 Tuesd	

Screen 3: Xdata for an image

) 😅 % 🖿	B 10	a 🕅 📷	1 2	Current	Directory: D:WATLAB	Work 🔽 🖻	 										
Shortcuts 🗷 How				curren	Directory. D. Ministrand		-										
Vorkspace	rto Add 🖻) **nat3 No	**				7	×	rray Editor	. VData						7	,
5 🛒 🖉 🎼	A 14	N • s	stack Ba						🏅 🖻 🛍		• t _m Stack	Rose M			⊞⊡⊟		
Name 🔺	Val			Class					1	2	3	4	5	6			_
ARR		1x1 double	e>	double				1	. 1				5				
Blue		5x1 double		double				2	2								
Green		5x1 double		double				3	3								
IRR		5 double>		double				4	4				-				
ORR		1x6 double		double				5	5		-						_
RGB		5x177x3 u		uint8				6	6		-	8					_
Red		5x1 double		double				7 8	7								-
XData		5x1 double		double				9	9		-	2				-	-
YData		5x1 double		double				10	10						_		-
с		175 double		double				11	11								-
fismat		1 struct>		struct				12	12								
output		5x1 double		double				13	13								
pixels		5x3 double		double				14	14				-				_
Br		175 double		double				15	15								_
.				404610				16	16 17								_
								17 18	17								-
ommand Win	dow						5		19								-
			-	-				20	20		-						-
	0 0 0 0		0	0				21	21							1	
	0 0 0 0		0	0				22	22								
	0 0 0 0		0	0				23	23								
-	0 0 0 0		0	0				24	24				-	-			_
	0 0		ō	0				25	25 26								_
	0 0		ō	Ő				26 27	26								-
	0 0		ō	ŏ				27	27								-
	0 0		0	0				20	20								-
	0 0		0	0				30	30							-	-1
								31							1	1	
·>									<		and the second		_	-	10		>
							>	<u>)</u> ur	named1 ×	Blue × RO	GB × Red	× XData ×	unnamed2	× output >	YData X		
Start																	

Screen 4: Ydata for an image

📣 MATLAB											
File Edit View Graphics Debug Desktop Window Help											
🗅 🔗 🐇 🐚 🏝 🕫 🖙 🎁 💅 💡 Current Directory: D:IMATLAB7twork 🔍 🖻											
Shortcuts 🕐 How to Add 🕐 What's New											
Workspace 🛛 🕹 🗙	1	rray Editor	- Red						× 5		
🐞 🖬 💯 🏭 🍜 🎢 🔤 - Stack: Base 🔽											
Name A Value Class		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8		
RGB <175x177x3 uint8> uint8	1	136							~		
Red <175x1 double> double the c <1x175 double> double the c <1x175 double> double the the <175x3 double> double the <175x3 double> double the <175x3 double> double	2	136									
C <1x175 double> double	3	136									
pixels <175x3 double> double	4	138							E		
r <1x175 double> double	5	139									
	6	138 143									
	8	143									
	9	145									
	10	145									
	11	145						0			
	12	147									
	13	148		-				-			
	14	148				·					
	15	149 150									
	16 17	150									
	17	150						-			
Command Window 🔹 🛪	19	153									
	20	155									
Warning: MATLAB Toolbox Path Cache is out of date and is not being used.	21	156									
Type 'help toolbox_path_cache' for more info.	22	160									
To get started, select MATLAB Help or Demos from the Help menu.	23	163									
To get started, select <u>mathab help</u> of <u>bemos</u> from the help menu.	24	167									
>> fuzzy	25	169									
>> 10229	26 27	171									
>>>	27	175									
>>>	20	177									
	30	182									
	31	184							~		
		< III							>		
	pi	xels × Red	×								
🚸 Start											
		a and a state of the	1			0.000 0.000000					
🛃 Start 🖳 MainThesisrevised5 📣 MATLAB 🛃 FIS Editor: Untitled 🛃 FI	5 Edito		1	* 💀 🕄 💲	Favorites				7:16 PM		
			3				<u> </u>	THE X X	aturday		

Screen 5: Red value from RGB file

Shortcuts 🗹 How to Add 🕐 What's New	-									
		rray Editor ·							5	
🖬 🥵 🏜 🍘 🖌 🔤 - Stack Base 🗸	iù.	🏅 🖻 💼	a 🔤	t _{III} Stack	Base 🔽					
lame A Value Class		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	
Green <175x1 double> double	25	188 190								
RGB <175x177x3 uint8> uint8	26 27	190								
Red <175x1 double> double	27	191								
c <1x175 double> double	29	196								
c <1x175 double> double pixels <175x3 double> double r <1x175 double> double	30	201								
r <1x175 double> double	31	203								
	32	207								
	33	209								
	34	213								
	35	214								
	36 37	21/ 221						-		
	38	224						-		
	39	225						-		
	40	229				· · · ·		-		
	41	230								
	42	232								
ommand Window 🔻 🛪	43	236								
arning: MATLAB Toolbox Path Cache is out of date and is not being used.	44	239								
ype 'help toolbox_path_cache' for more info.	45	244								
	46 47	249 251						-		
To get started, select MATLAB Help or Demos from the Help menu.	47	251								
	49	253						-		
> fuzzy	50	254						-		
»	51	255								
»	52	255								
>	53	255								
	54	254				2				
	55	255						1	>	
		xels × Red	ana ana l	100 M						

Screen 6: Green value from RGB file

📣 MATLAB									
File Edit View Graphics Debug Desktop Window Help									
🗋 🗃 👗 🐘 🛍 🕫 🖙 🎁 💕 💡 Current Directory: D:MATLAB7twork 🔽 色									
Shortcuts 🗷 How to Add 💽 What's New									
Workspace 🔹 🛪	1	Array Editor	Blue						× v
🐐 🛒 🥵 🏭 🌆 🖌 Stack Base 🗸	-								
Name A Value Class		1	2	• t _⊞ Stack	4	5	6	7	8
Bite Clock double Bite Croren 4175x1 double> double RoB 4175x1 double> double RoB 4175x1 double> double RoB 4175x1 double> double Col 4175x1 double> double Bred 4175x1 double> double briefs <175x1 double> double briefs <175x1 double> double r <1x175 double> double	1	109							~
🗄 Green <175x1 double> double	2	109							
HRGB <175x177x3 uint8> uint8	3	116 119							
H Red <175x1 double> double	4	119							
🗄 c <1x175 double> double	6	122		-					<u> </u>
Η pixels <175x3 double> double	7	128							
H r <1x175 double> double	8	131							
	9	137							
	10	139							
	11	142							
	12	146							
	13 14	148							
	14	149							
	16	152							
	17	156							
	18	158							
Command Window 🔹 🛪	19	162							
Warning: MATLAB Toolbox Path Cache is out of date and is not being used.	20	165							
Type 'help toolbox path cache' for more info.	21	170							
	22	174							
To get started, select MATLAB Help or Demos from the Help menu.	23	178 182							
	24	186							
>> fuzzy	26	188							
>>	27	191							
>>	28	194							
>>	29	194							
	30	199							
	31	201							>
	i ni	ixels × Red	x x x	Graan V un	named y Pl				
	1 × pi	inclus in integ				uc 🖻			
A Start									
🛃 Start 🔛 MainThesisrevised5 📣 MATLAB 🛃 FIS Editor: Untitled 🛃 F	IS Edito		3		3		an a l	🗑 👷 🌒 🗐 (7:32 PM
			e e	сња 1 -	Favorites		2 Y		al Saturday

Screen 7: Blue value from RGB file

FIS Editor: CATARACTDETECTION				
e Edit View				
Red				
Green		CATARACTDETECTION		
Blue		(mamdani)		
XData YData				output1
FIS Name:	CATARACIDETECTION		FIS Type:	mamdani
And method	min	Currer	it ∀ariable	
Or method	max	Name		Red
Implication	min	Type		input (0 255)
Aggregation	max			[0 233]
Defuzzification	centroid		Help	Close
System "CATARACTDETECTION": 5 inputs, 1 c	utput, and 6 rules			
Start Main Thesisrevised5 -	📣 MATLAB 🛃 FIS Editor:	Untitled 🚺 FIS Editor: CA	TARAC 🧷 😰 😰	* Favorites 한 한 한 종일 * · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

Screen 8: Fuzzy Inference System

Membership Function Editor: CATARACTE	DETECTION					
			Membership function plots	plot points:	181	
FIS Variables	Darks	shad e	1	Lightshade		
Red Red						
output1						
Green	0.5 -					
Blue						
XData	0	0 100		200	250	
YData	0 50	U 100	150 input variable "Red"	200	250	
Current Variable		Current Membership Function (clic	k on MF to select)			
		Name				
Name R	Red	Туре		Darkshade		
Type in	nput			trapmf	<u>·</u>	
Range	[0 255]	Params	[1 1 100 100]			
Display Range	[0 255]	Help		Close		
		nep]	Close		
Ready						
	MATLAB	FIS Editor: CAT 4 Mer) 🎒 🗐 🌀 7:35 PM	
MainThesisrevis	FIS Editor: Untitled	Mer	nbership Fun 🥜 😨 😰 🛱 Favorites 🧃) 🗇 🕘 🖓 📲) 🛢 🗐 🏈 - 7:35 РМ (🕵 🛄 😾 - Saturday	

Screen 9: Membership function for input – red

Membership Function Editor: CATARACTDET	TECTION					- 🗗 🔼
File Edit View						
FIS Variables			Membership function plots	plot points:	181	
	Darks	shade	1	Lightshade	1	
	12					
Oreen output1						
Elue	0.5 -				-	
XData	0 <mark>P</mark>	D 100	150 input variable "Green"	200	250	
Current Variable		Current Membership Function (cli	x on MF to select)			
Name Gree	en	Name		Darkshade		
Type input	t	Туре		trapmf		•
Range (0.2	255]	Params	[1 1 100 100]			
Display Range [0 2	255]	Нер			Close	
Selected variable "Green"						
🛃 Start MainThesisrevis 📣 MA	ATLAB	🛃 FIS Editor: CAT 🚺 Me	mbership Fun 🧷 😰 💈	🕈 Favorites 📁 📁 🙆 🎽		7:35 PM Saturday

Screen 10: Membership function for input –green

Membership Function Editor: CATARA	CTDETECTION				
File Edit View					
50 V 1 V			Membership function plats	plot points:	181
FIS Variables	Darl	i i kshade	1	Lightshade	
Red output1	1 🗗			Ligitor Kwe	
Green Blue	0.5				-
XData					
YData	0	50 TOC	150 input variable "Blue"	200	250
Current Variable		Current Membership Function (clid	k on MF to select)		
Name	Blue	Name		Darkshade	
Туре	input	Туре		trapmf	•
Range	[0 255]	Params	[1 1 100 100]		
Display Range	[0 255]	Help		Close	e
Selected variable "Blue"					
MainThesisrevis	MATLAB	FIS Editor: CAT 🛃 Me	nbership Fun 🧷 🖓 💱 🗳 Favo	rites 📁 📁 🙆 🔭 📢	2 2 3 3 5 7:37 PT

Screen 11: Membership function for input – Blue

Membership Function Editor: CATARA	CTDETECTION						- @ 🛛
File Edit View							
					plot points:		
FIS Variables			Membership fund	tion plots		181	
FIS Variables		1	1	1	1	1	1
	Out	ter1	Centerrej	gion	Outer2		
	1		θ				
Red				10			
output1			\				
Green			l I				
	0.5 -			ų.		<u></u>	
Blue							
XData	· •						
	0 20	40 60	80	100 120	140	160	1
			input variable "	'XData"			
YData							
Current Variable		Current Membership Functio	n (click on MF to select)				
Name	XData	Name			Outer1		
Туре	input	Туре			trapmf		-
Type	input						
		Params					
Range	[0 175]		[1 1 6	/ 6/]			
	[o rio]						
Display Range							
	[0 175]	н	alp			Close	
Selected variable "XData"							
							2.00.011
🛃 start 🔛 MainThesisrevis	MATLAB IS Editor: Untitled	FIS Editor: CAT	Membership Fun	🧷 🔯 🙎 🍍 Favorites 👔] 📁 🥑 🗍		7:38 PM Saturday
						55-X-X-E 36	

Screen 12: Membership function for Xdata

Membership Function Editor: CATAR	ACTDETECTION				
e Edit View					
			Membership function plats	plot points:	181
FIS Variables		1	wembership function plots		
		Outer1	Centerregion	Outer2	
	1		- f		
Red Output1					
Green					
	0.5 -		l III		-
Blue					
			1		
XData	0 20	40 60	80 100	120 140	160
	0 20	40 00	input variable "YData"	120 140	100
YData					
Current Variable		Current Membership Fur	ction (click on MF to select)		
Name	YData	Name		Outer1	
		Туре			
Туре	input	1300		trapmf	
		Params			
Range	[0 175]		[1 1 67 67]		
Display Range	[0 175]		Help		Close
Selected variable "YData"					
🖌 start 👘 🔛 MainThesisrevis	📣 MATLAB 🛃 FIS Editor	r: Untitled 🛛 🚺 FIS Editor: CAT			
Start MainThesisrevis	🙀 MATLAB 🛛 🚺 FIS Editor	r: Unciled PIS Editor: CAT	🛃 Membership Fun 🤌 📷 👩 🦉	Favorites 📁 📁 🧉	

Screen 13: Membership functon for Ydata

🛃 Membership Function Editor:	CATARACTDETECTION							
File Edit View								
FIS Variables				Membership function	plots	plot points:	181	
		none	cataract	Cortical	_	Nuclear		
					L(t	
luqtuo	11							
Green	0.5	_2					_	
Blue								
XData	0		11		b		E	
	0		50 10	0 output variable "outp	150 ut1"	200	250	
YData Current Variable		1						
Current Variable			Current Membership Function (cl	ick on Mir to select)				
Name	output1		Name			Nuclear		
Туре	output		Туре			trapmf		•
			Params	[151 151 2	55 2551			
Range	[0 255]			fier for a	,			
Display Range	[0 255]		Help				Close	
						L		
Ready								
🛃 start 🔰 🔛 MainThesisre	vised5 👿 Microsoft V	Vord 📣 5 MATLAB		e	💀 🛛 🗘 Favorites 🧯) 📁 🥑 🏾		5:19 PM aturday

Screen 14: Membership function for Output

Viewer: CATARACTDETECT t View Options					
Red = 255	Green = 255	Blue = 255	XData = 70	YData = 70	output1 = 204
0 255	0 255	0 255	0 175	0 175	
U 285	0 295	U 235	0 1/5	0 175	0 2
					0 2
[255 255 255 70 70]		Plot points:	101 Move:	left right	down up
at least one rule to view rules				Help	Close
art 🔛 MainThesisrevi	sed5 😿 Microsoft Word	📣 5 MATLAB 🗸		🛛 🖞 Favorites 📁 🃁 🧭	* 🖉 🕽 👷 🔍 Ø

Screen 15: Rule Viewer Output = 204 (Nuclear)

🛃 Rule	Viewer: CATARACTDETECTION					
File Edit	t View Options					
	Red = 200	Green = 200	Blue = 200	XData = 50	YData = 50	output1 = 125
1						
2						
3						
4						
5						
6	0 255					
l	0 255	0 255	0 255	0 175	0 175	
						0 255
Input:	[200 200 200 50 50]		Plot points:	101 Move:	left right	down up
Need	at least one rule to view rules				Help	Close
🐮 sta	art 🔛 Main Thesisrevised5	👿 Microsoft Word 🗳	5 MATLAB	2 10 Q	Favorites 📁 📁 💩 🎽	5:17 PM

Screen 16: Rule Viewer Output = 125 (Cortical)

Viewer: CATARACTDETECT View Options					
Red = 200	Green = 200	Blue = 200	XData = 150	YData = 150	output1 = 125
255	0 255	0 255	0 175	0 175	
200	0 235	0 200	0 173	0 173	
[200 200 200 150 150		Plot points:	101 Move:	left right	down up
at least one rule to view rules				Help	Close
art 🔁 MainThesisrevi	sed5 📈 Microsoft Word	📣 5 MATLAB 🗸		🛛 🖞 Favorites 📁 📁 🤕	

Screen 17: Rule Viewer Output = 125 (Cortical)



Screen 18: Rule Viewer Output = 51 (Noncataract)

📣 MATLAB		X
File Edit View Graphics Debug Desktop Window Help		
🗋 🗃 👗 🖻 🛍 🕫 🖙 🎁 🎁 🦹 Current Directory: D:'MATLAB7!work 💌 🔁		
Shortcuts 🗷 How to Add 🕐 What's New		
Workspace 🔹 🛪	🖬 Array Editor - pixe5 🔹 🔻	×
🚡 🖬 😂 🎽 🕅 🖯 Stack Base 🗸	🙀 🔏 🛍 🖨 💹 - t _m Stack Base 🖌 🗄 🖽 🗄 🗗 8	×
Name A Value Class	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	
H Y <177x177x3 uint8> uint8 H c <1x175 double> double mixc5 <175x3 double> double H r <1x175 double> double	1 116 35 36	^
🗄 c <1x175 double> double	2 113 33 34	
H pixc5 <175x3 double> double	3 112 32 33 4 114 34 35	
H r <1x175 double> double	4 114 34 35 5 117 37 38	
	6 120 40 40	-11
	7 121 41 40	
	8 117 37 37	
	9 115 35 34	
	10 114 34 33	_
	11 114 34 34 12 115 35 36	-
	12 115 35 36 13 116 36 38	
	14 117 37 39	
	15 117 37 40	
	16 115 35 37	
	17 112 32 34	
	18 109 29 31	-
Command Window 🔹 🛪	19 107 27 28 20 107 26 27	-
Warning: MATLAB Toolbox Path Cache is out of date and is not being used.	20 107 26 27 21 110 28 30	-
Type 'help toolbox_path_cache' for more info.	22 113 32 34	-11
	23 117 35 37	-
To get started, select MATLAB Help or Demos from the Help menu.	24 121 38 39	
<pre>>> Y = imread('F:\colorvalc5.png');</pre>	25 123 38 39	
>> c = [1:175];	26 123 36 37	-
>> r = [1:175];	27 123 36 35 28 125 38 37	-11
<pre>>> pixc5 = impixel(Y, c, r);</pre>	29 131 42 41	
»»	30 137 48 45	
	31 132 42 38	
	32 128 37 32	~
🚸 Start		
🛃 Start 🔮 ManThesisrevised5 😭 Local Disk (F:) 🔹 MATLAB 📧 Mi	rosoft Excel - Booki 🧷 🖓 🖗 🖗 🗧 Favorites 📁 🃁 🙆 🧐 😼 👯 🛢 🗎 11:27 A	

Screen 19: RGB values for a retro-illumination image representing C5

🗅 🚁 🐰 🐚 🋍 🕫 🖙 🎁 💅 🤶 Current Directory: D:WATLAB7work 🔍 📵								
hortcuts I How to Add I What's New								
Vorkspace	N 5	Array Editor	- nixc1					7
🕯 🖬 😰 🍓 🎽 🔟 🔹 Stack Base 🗸	10			t 📰 Stack: Base 🗸				80*
Value Class			2	3 4	5	6		8
L <39x59x3 uint8> uint8	1	246		116	3	0	,	0
Y <177x177x3 uint8> uint8	2	251		127				
c <1x175 double> double	3	229		122				
pixc1 <175x3 double> double	4	242	216	128				
pixc1 <175x3 double> double	5	245		128				
r <1x175 double> double	6	231		117				
	7	241		125				
	8	235		113				
	9	239 230		107 94				
	10	230		94				
	12	233		89				
	12	240		77				-
	14	236		76				
	15	240		78				
	16	236		71				
	17	239		74				
	18	243		81				
ommand Window	7 X 19	241		85				
>> c = [1:175];	20	240 239		90 90				
>> $r = [1:175];$	21	239		101				
>> pixc5 = impixel(Y, c, r);	22 23	240		84				
>> L = imread(colvalc1.png);	24	241		103				-
??? Undefined variable "colvalc1" or class "colvalc1.png".	25	228		79				
	26	238		77				
<pre>>> L = imread('F:\colvalc1.png');</pre>	27	231	160	65				
<pre>??? Error using ==> imread</pre>	28	236		70				
'ile "F:\colvalc1.png" does not exist.	29	238		76				
<pre>> L = imread('F:\colvalc1.png');</pre>	30	240		77				
<pre>>> L = imread('f:\colvalcl.png'); >> pixc1 = impixel(L, c, r);</pre>	31	< 2.38	ih4	751			1	>
> pixei = impixei(1, 0, 1);	- 1 r	ixc5 × pixc1	×					
Start	<u> </u>	pixer						-

Screen 20: RGB values for a retro-illumination image representing C1

- 🐰 🐚 🛍 🗠 🖙 🎁 💕 🤶 Current Directory: D:'MATLAB7'work 🔽 💽									
ts 🗷 How to Add 🗷 What's New									
	×	rray Editor -	nive?						7
🕼 🍓 🎽 🐨 - Stack: Base 🗸	10	X 🖻 🛍]] +_ [
	- 2			• t _⊞ Stack:					,
		1	2 207	3 151	4	5	6	7	8
<176x176x3 uint8> uint8	1	247 247	207						
<176x177x3 uint8> uint8	3	247	200						
<177x177x3 uint8> uint8	4	240	210						
<1x175 double> double	4 5	243	210						-
c1 <175x3 double> double	6	244	211						
2 <175x3 double> double	7	244	210						
5 <175x3 double> double	8	244	209					-	
<1x175 double> double	9	244	208						
	10	244	207					-	
	11	244	205					-	
	12	244	204					-	
	13	244	203	146					
	14	244	202	143				-	
	15	244	201	139					
	16	245	200	135					
	17	245	198	133					
	18	244	197						
and Window 🛛 🗖 🗖	X 19	244	197						
Undefined variable "colvalc1" or class "colvalc1.png".	▲ 20	244	196						
	21	243	196						
<pre>= imread('F:\colvalc1.png');</pre>	22	243	194						
Error using ==> imread	23	242	193						
"F:\colvalc1.png" does not exist.	24	242	191						
recorder.phy does not exist.	25	241	189						
<pre>= imread('F:\colvalc1.png');</pre>	26	240	187						
<pre>ixc1 = impixel(L, c, r);</pre>	27	240	186						
<pre>intread('F:\colvalc1.png');</pre>	28	239	185						
<pre>ixc1 = impixel(L, c, r);</pre>	29	239 239	184					-	
<pre>ixc1 = impixe1(L, C, r); = imread('F:\colvalc2.png');</pre>	30	239	182					1	
		< 2.59	182	- Bh				1	
<pre>ixc2 = impixel(M, c, r);</pre>		cc1 × pixc2	×						
न	The put	pixez	<u> </u>						



orkspace	to Add 🗷 What's New	8	×	rray Editor -	nive3					,
à 🖬 🚇 🖬	🗁 🎽 🔣 - Stack Base 🗸		1			t Stack Base				
ame 🔺	Value Class			1	2		4 5	6	7	8
L	<176x176x3 uint8> uint8		1	241	196	114				-
M	<176x177x3 uint8> uint8		2	241	196	114				
N	<175x175x3 uint8> uint8		3	242	196	113				
V	<177x177x3 uint8> uint8		4	242	196	113				
Y c	<1x175 double> double		5	243	196	111				
pixc1	<175x3 double> double <175x3 double> double		6	243	196	111				
ріхсі ріхс2			7	243	196	110				
	<175x3 double> double		8	243	196	110				
pixc3	<175x3 double> double		9	244	196	111				
ріхс5	<175x3 double> double		10	243	196	110				
r	<1x175 double> double		11	243 244	196	110 111				
			12	244 243	196 196	111				
			14	243	196	111			-	
			15	243	197	111				
			16	243	197	111				
			17	243	198	111				
			18	243	199	112				
nmand Wind	low	7	× 19	243	199	113				
	ad('F:\colvalc1.png');		▲ 20	243	199	114				
	sing ==> imread		21	242	200	115				
	lvalc1.png" does not exist.		22	242	200	116		-		
Te -1:(co	ivalci.phg~ does not exist.		23	242	202	117				
1	ad('F:\colvalc1.png');		24	241	202	118				
			25	241	203	119				
	impixel(L, c, r);		26	241	203	120				
	ad('F:\colvalc1.png'); impixel(L, c, r);		27	241	204	121				
-			28	240	205	122				
	ad('F:\colvalc2.png');		29	240	206	124				
-	impixel(M, c, r);		30	240 239	206	125 126		-	-	
	ad('F:\colvalc3.png');		31	< 2.39	218	12h	1			
pixes =	impixel(N, c, r);				× pixc3 >					

Screen 22: RGB values for retro-illumination image representing C3

🗚 MATLAB											
File Edit Debuç	g Desktop Window Help										
🗅 🚅 🕹 🖿) 🛍 🗠 🖙 🎁 💅 💡 Current Directory: 🔃	MATLAB7work 🔽 🖻									
Shortcuts 🗷 Hov	v to Add 🕐 What's New										
Workspace		× 5	E A	rray Editor	- pixc4						7
🖥 🖬 🖉 🎼	🖨 🎽 💽 🖣 Stack: Base 🗸		-	X 🗈 🛍		t Stack:	Base 🗸				
Name 🔺	Value Class			1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
L	<176x176x3 uint8> uint8		1	250	231	188					
M	<176x177x3 uint8> uint8		2	250	231	187					
N	<175x175x3 uint8> uint8		3	250	230	186					
R	<177x175x3 uint8> uint8		4	250	229						
Y	<177x177x3 uint8> uint8		5	250 251	228 228						
c	<1x175 double> double		6	251	228	182					
pixc1	<175x3 double> double		8	250	227					1	
pixc2	<175x3 double> double		9	249	225						
pixc3	<175x3 double> double		10	248	224	177					
pixc4	<175x3 double> double		11	248	223	175					
pixc5	<175x3 double> double		12	248	223	174					
r	<1x175 double> double		13	249	224	173					
1.			14	249	224	173					
			15	249	223						
			16	250	223			· ·			
			17	251	223						
			18	251	223						
ommand Win	dow	× 5	19	250 249	221 220	167 165					
> O = impi	<pre>xel('F:\colvalc4.png');</pre>		20 21	249	220						
	sing ==> getpts		21	240	210	160					-
nterruptio	n during mouse point selection.		23	247	215						-
			24	246	215						
	> impixel>parse_inputs at 201		25	245	213						
[xi	<pre>,yi] = getpts(get(h,'Parent'));</pre>		26	245	212	152					
			27	245	211	151					
	> impixel at 74		28	244	211	149					
a,cm,xi,yi	<pre>.,x,y] = parse_inputs(varargin(:));</pre>		29	244	210						
			30	244	210						
	ad('F:\colvalc4.png');		31	< 243	209	146				1	>
	<pre>pixel(R, c, r);</pre>		-	cc1 × pixe2		× pixc4 ×					~
>		<u>×</u>	p pp	ter pixes	pixes	^ pixc4 X					
A Start											
🛃 start	MainThesisrevis 🎧 Local Disk (F:)	MATLAB S Microsoft Of	- 6	🛛 3 Microsoft (x •	-					💋 12:15 PM
					2		Havontes		9	ୢୄୖ	Sunday



	r to Add 🕐 What's New								
forkspace		A 🔁 🛛 🔨	rray Editor -	pixc5					7
à 🛒 🚇 🖬 (🚔 🊈 🚾 🔹 Stack: Base 🔽	1 dia 1	i 🗈 🛍	a 🔤 -	t 📰 Stack: Base 😒				80,
ame 🔺	Value Class		1	2	3 4	5	6	7	8
L	<176x176x3 uint8> uint8	1	235	177	94				
M	<176x177x3 uint8> uint8	2	235	176	92				
N	<175x175x3 uint8> uint8	3	233	174	89		_		
N R	<177x175x3 uint8> uint8	4	233	172	87				
S Y c	<175x176x3 uint8> uint8	5	231 231	171	85 83		-		
Y	<177x177x3 uint8> uint8	6 7	231	169	82			-	
с	<1x175 double> double	8	231	166	81		-		
pixc1	<175x3 double> double	9	231	163	81				
pixc2	<175x3 double> double	10	231	162	80			-	
pixc3	<175x3 double> double	11	232	160	80				
pixc4	<175x3 double> double	12	231	156	79				
nixe5	<175x3 double> double	13	230	152	77				
pixc5 r	<1x175 double> double	14	229	150	77				
·		15	229	147	78				
		16	230	145	79				
		17	225	137	76				
	Landa	18	220	130 122	72 68				
mmand Wind	JOW	₹ X <u>19</u>	214 208	122	64		-		-
,cm,xi,yi,	<pre>,x,y] = parse_inputs(varargin(:));</pre>	▲ 20 24	200	106	59				
		21	195	97	54		-		
R = imrea	ad('F:\colvalc4.png');	23	189	90	50		-		
	pixel(R, c, r);	24	183	83	47		-		
		25	178	77	44				
	ad('F:\colvalc5.png');	26	175	73	44				
	pixel(S, c, r);)	27	175	73	47				
? pixc5=ir	<pre>mpixel(S, c, r);)</pre>	28	175	72	48				
		29	174	72	50				
ror: Unbal	lanced or misused parentheses or brackets.	30	172	70	50		-		
		31	170	68	50				
	pixel(S, c, r);			-		1			
		💌 🔅 pb	cc1 × pixc2	× pixc3 ×	pixc4 × pixc5 ×				

Screen 24: RGB values for retro-illumination image representing C5

Rule Editor: Gradingcortical le Edit View Options						
1. If (Red is c1) and (Green is c1) and (Blue is 2. If (Red is c2) and (Green is c2) and (Blue is 3. If (Red is c3) and (Green is c3) and (Blue is 4. If (Red is c4) and (Green is c4) and (Blue is c1) (Red is c5) and (Green is c5) and (Blue is c1) (Red is c5) and (Green is c5) and (Blue is 5. If (Red is c5) and (Green is c5) and (Blue is 5. If (Red is c5) and (Green is c5) and (Blue is 5. If (Red is c5) and (Green is c5) and (Blue is 5. If (Red is c5) and (Green is c5) and (Blue is 5. If (Red is c5) and (Green is c5) and (Blue is 5. If (Red is c5) and (Green is c5) and (Blue is 5. If (Red is c5) and (Green is c5) and (Blue is) 5. If (Red is c5) and (Green is c5) and (Blue is) 5. If (Red is c5) and (Green is) and (Blue is) 5. If (Red is c5) and (Green is) and (Blue is) 5. If (Red is) and (Green is) and (Blue is) 5. If (Red is) and (Green is) and (Blue is) 5. If (Red is) and (Green is) and (Blue is) 5. If (Red is) and (Green is) and (Blue is) 5. If (Red is) and (Green is) and (Blue is) 5. If (Red is) and (Green is) and (Green is) and (Blue is) 5. If (Red is) and (Green is) and (Green is) and (Blue is) 5. If (Red is) and (Green is) and (Green is) and (Green is) and (Blue is) 5. If (Red is) and (Green is) and (Gr	c2) then (status is c2) (1)					
If Red is	and Green is	and	e is		Then	status is
C2 C4 C4 C3 none	c1 c2 c3 c4 c5 none	 c1 c2 c3 c4 c5 none 	×		c1 c2 c3 c4 c5 none	
Connection	not Weight:	not			not	
and The rule is added	1	Delete rule	Add rule	Change rule		« »
				Help		Close
Start MainThe 🔄 cal	taract 📣 5 MAT 🔹 🔣	3 Micr 🔹 🙆 Microsof 🥳	2 Outl 🔹 📆 2138.pd	🧷 😰 🕄 🗘 Favorites 📁 🚦	🗖 🗿 🥘	C

Screen 25: Rule Formulation for Grading Cortical cataract



Screen 26: Membership function for output



Screen 27: Rule viewer for Grading Cortical cataract

Appendix B - Platform Used

The following were the Hardware and Software requirements of the system developed in this Research work.

- 1) Operating System: Microsoft Windows XP
- 2) Development Environment: MATLAB 7.0 for FIS, Microsoft VB.NET for development of crude algorithm, Microsoft Picture Manager

3) Hardware:

- a) Processor: Intel Core 2 Duo processor
- b) RAM: Minimum 256 MB and upto 1 GB DDR2
- c) Hard Disk: Minimum 40 GB and upto 160 GB
- 3.1) Slit lamp model: TopCon SL6

Appendix – C Photo Gallery









Some Cataract Images









Some cropped cataract images





Some cropped normal eye images







Some retro-illumination images



Some cropped retro – illumination images

Bibliography

♦ Books

- Amos Gilat, 2007, MATLAB An introduction with applications, New Delhi, Wiley – India
- 2. Briony J Oates, 2006, *Researching Information Systems and Computing*, London, Thousand Oaks, New Delhi, Sage publications
- 3. Jack J. Kanski, Consultant Surgeon, King Edward VII Hospital ,Windsor, 1990, Clinical ophthalmology, second edition, Hongkong, Butterworth - Heinemann
- 4. Rafael Gonzalez, Richard E. Woods, Steven L. Eddins, 2005, *Digital Image processing using MATLAB*, New Delhi, Pearson Education
- 5. Timothy J Ros, 2000, *Fuzzy Logic with Engineering applications*, New Mexico, McGraw Hill
- 6. Thearon Willis, 2005, Beginning VB.NET, New Delhi, Wrox publication

Journal articles

1. Alvydas Paunknis, Saulius Kusleika, Marija Kusleikaite, 2006, 'The relationship of the intensity of lens opacity with physical activity', *Medicina (Kaunas)* 42(9)

- 2. Benjamin V. Magno, Valeria Freidlin, Manuel B Datiles, 1994A 'Reproducibility of' the NEI Scheimpflug cataract imaging system', *Investigative Opthalmology and Visual Science, Vol 135*
- Benjamin V. Magno, Valeria Freidlin, Manuel B Datiles, 1995B, 'Study of Nuclear Cataract progression using NEI Scheimpflug system', British Journal of Opthalmology, 79; pp527 – 534
- Cristiano Jacques Miosso, Adolfo Bauchspiess, 2001 'Fuzzy Inference Application to edge Detection in Digital images', *Proceedings of the V. Brazilian conference on Neural Network*, April 2-5, 2001, pp 481 – 486
- Grigory Begelman, Eran Gur, Ehud Rivlin, Micheal Rudzsky and Zeev Zalevsky, 2004, 'Cell Nuclei Segmentation using Fuzzy Logic Engine', Proceedings of International conference on Image processing
- Goran Bencic, Mia Zoric Geber, Dean Savic, Zdravko Mandic and Maja Corak,
 2005, 'Opacities classification System in Phacoemulsification', *Coll Antropol.25* pp
 91-94
- 7. Huiqi Li, Member, IEEE, Joo Hwee Lim, Jiang Liu, Tien Yin Wong, 2007,
 'Towards Automatic grading of Nuclear cataract', Proceedings of the 29th Annual International Conference of the IEEE EMBS, France, August 23-26, 2007, pp 4961 – 4964.
- 8. Harilaos S Ginis, Sotiris Plainis, Aristophanis Pallikaris, 2004, 'Variability of wavefront aberration measurements in small pupil size using a clinical Shack Hartmann abberator', BMC ophthalmology 4:1
- 9. I. Nedeljkovic, 2000, 'Image Classification based on Fuzzy Logic', The International Archives of Photogrammetry, Remote sensing and spatial Information Sciences, Vol 34
- 10.Kwokleung Chan, Te- Wong Lee, Pamela A Sample, Micheal H Goldbaum,

Robert N Weinreb, Terrence J Sejnowski,2002 'Comparison of Machine Learning and Traditional classifiers in Glaucoma Diagnosis', *IEEE transactions on Biomedical Engineering*, Vol 49, No 9

- Michael Henry Goldbaum, 2005, 'Unsupervised Learning with independent Component Analysis to identify patterns of Glaucomatous visual field defects', *Trans Am Opthalmology Society*, Vol 103, pp 270-280
- 12.Milindkumar Sarode, Dr S.A Ladhake, Dr Prashant Deshmukh, 2008, 'Fuzzy system for color image enhancement', *Processdings of World Academy of Science*, *Engineering and Technology*, Vol 36, ISSN2070-3740
- 13.Nguyen Minh Thanh and Musong Chen, 2007, 'Image denoising using Adaptive Neuro-Fuzzy system', IAENG International Journal of Applied Mathematics 36:1, IJAM_36_1_11
- 14.Rami J Oweis, Muna J Sunna, 2005, 'A combined neuro-fuzzy approach for classifying image pixels in medical application', *Journal of Electrical Engineering*, Vol 56, No5-6, pp146 150
- 15.Shashank Mathur, Anil Ahlawat, 2008, 'Application of Fuzzy Logic for image edge detection', INFOS 2008,
- 16 Luis Carvalho MS, Silvio A. Tonissi MS and Jarbas C. Castro
 , July'1999, 'Preliminary tests and construction of a computerized quantitative surgical keratometer'. *Journal of Cataract & Refractive Surgery*, Volume 25, Issue
 6, Pages 821 826
- Web pages
 - 1.Dr. Murray McFadden, 2003, *Cataract Surgery and Lens Implantation*[online], Available from: <u>http://www.prk.com</u> (Accessed 23 Sep 2008)

- 2. H. R Tizhoosh, 2004, *Fuzzy Image Processing*[online],Available from http://www.pami.uwaterloo.ca (Accessed 11 Oct 2008)
- 3.I Lizarazo, J Barros, 2008, *Fuzzy image segmentation for urban land- cover classification*[online], Available from <u>http://isprs.org</u> (Accessed 1 Feb'2009)
- 4. J. M Smith, MEI Brawany, D Nassin, H Tabandeh and GM Thompson, 2002, The relationship between Nuclear colour and opalescence on the LOCS-III scale and physical characteristics of cataract nuclei [online] Available from: http:// www.nature.com (Accessed 10 March 2008)
- John Fowler Opthalmics Ltd, 2005, *Cataract*[online], Available from: <u>http://www.myeyeworld.com</u> (Accessed 20 March 2009)
- Michael D. Abramoff, Meindert Niemijer, Maria S.A, Max A Viergever, Stephen R Russell, Bram Van Ginneken, 2008, Evaluation of system for automatic detection of Diabetic Retinopathy for Color fundus photographs in large population of patients with Diabetes [online], Available from: http://medgenmed.medscape.com (Accessed 10 Feb 2009)
- 7. National Eye institute, 2006, All about Cataract[online],
 Available from: <u>http://www.nei.nih.gov/health/cataract (Accessed 22nd May'08)</u>
- 8. Oulu University Library, 2000, Lens autofluorescence, Light scatter and LOCSIII [online], Available from: <u>http://herkules.oulu.fi</u> (Accessed 11 Jan 2009)
- 9.Prof. Eytan Blumenthals, 2008, *Detection of Glaucoma progression* [online], Available from: <u>http://glaucoma.co.il</u> (Accessed 10 Feb 2009)
- Shroff eye hospital, 2003, Cataract Surgery, Cataract Eye Surgery[online], Available from: <u>http://shroffeye.com</u> (Accessed 23 Nov 2008)

- 11. Shashank mathur, 2008, Application of fuzzy logic on image edge detection[online], Available from <u>http://foibg.com</u> (Accessed Jan '09)
- 12. S.H Chavoshi, A Amiri, J Amini, 2008, Supervised classification in high resolution image using Neural Network, Fuzzy sets[online], Available from: http://www.gisdevelopment.com (Accessed 5 Jan 2008)
- 13. Tariq M. Aslam, Niall Patton, Christopher J. Rose, 2009, OSCA: A comprehensive open access system of analysis of posterior capsular opacification[online] Available from : <u>http://www.biomedcentral.com</u> (Accessed 11 March 2009)
- 14. World Now, 2007, Detection and Treatement of cataract[online], Available from: <u>http://www.whas11.com</u> (Accessed 23 Sep 2008)